
 

 

 

County Council Meeting 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting will be held both in person in Council Chambers at 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, 
and virtually through Zoom.  Please be aware that there is limited seating available for the in-

person meeting and attendees must practice social distancing 

Monday, September 27, 2021 
6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION - Council Member Brian Flewelling 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

6. THE 2021 CASHVEST NATIONAL LEADERSHIP AWARD PRESENTATION FOR MARIA WALLS, BEAUFORT 
COUNTY TREASURER 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 

8. LIASION AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

10. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF THE CAUCUS EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

11. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF A TEXT AMENDMENT TO BEAUFORT COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 42, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 3, SECTION 42.-81 TO UPDATE BOUNDARIES (SHELDON 
FIRE DISTRICT) 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0  

12. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 3.1.60 (CONSOLIDATED USE TABLE) AND SECTION 
4.1.190 (RECREATION FACILITY: CAMPGROUNDS) TO REVISE THE CAMPGROUND STANDARDS 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0  

13. PUBLIC HEARING OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF A CONSERVATION EASEMENT 
ON REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS TMS# R700 040 000 0001 0000 AND R700 030 000 0004 0000 AND ALSO 
KNOWN AS DALE  

14. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO REPURPOSE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF THE LOWCOUNTRY’S 
2021 LOCAL ATAX GRANT AWARD 

15. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A 
MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL #R112-031-000-0628-0000 

16. APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION OF A COVID-19 INPATIENT EMPLOYEE 
LEAVE DONATION PROGRAM AS DETAILED IN EXHIBIT “A” 

17. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FEDERAL GRANT: AWARD # 1H79TI084543-01 IN THE AMOUNT 
OF  $1.9 MILLION 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

18. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
  

2



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 

Items Originating from the Finance Committee 
1. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND BEAUFORT COUNTY ORDINANCE 2020/_30__ FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2021-22 BEAUFORT COUNTY BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR THE CARRYOVER OF CERTAIN EXPENDITURES 
FROM FY 2020-21 TO INCLUDE NEW FTES FOR FINANCE, BUDGET & PURCHASING 
Total Carryover Amount: $4,974,270.44 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: AUGUST 23, 2021 11/0 
VOTE AT PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0 
 

2. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE RE-DIRECTION AND EXPENDITURE OF A PORTION 
OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE BEAUFORT COUNTY, GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: AUGUST 23, 2021 11/0 
VOTE AT PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0 

3. A REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO MEDIATION TO ATTEMPT TO 
ESTABLISH THE PURCHASE PRICE OF TWO PARKING LOTS AT THE OLD COURTHOUSE FROM THE G.G. 
DOWLING FAMILY PARTNERSHIP, LP. 

Items Originating from the Natural Resources Committee 
4. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

CODE (CDC): SECTION 5.5.30.B.1 (GENERAL PARKING STANDARDS, OFF-SITE/PREMISES PARKING) TO 
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FLEXIBILITY 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: AUGUST 23, 2021 11/0 
VOTE AT PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0 
 

5. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT OF AN EASEMENT 
ENCUMBERING PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS TMS NO. R100 016 000 0199 0000 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: AUGUST 23, 2021 11/0 
VOTE AT PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0 
 

6. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 3.09 
ACRES OF PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS R100 024 000 0423 0000 LOCATED AT 24 ZEHM LANE, FROM S1 
INDUSTRIAL TO C3 NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED USE DISTRICT 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: AUGUST 23, 2021 11/0 
VOTE AT PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0 
 

7. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDEMENT TO ARTICLE 5 ADDING A NEW DIVISION 
5.13 TITLED "FILL STANDARDS" TO LIMIT THE AMOUNT OF FILL ON LOW-LYING AREAS 
VOTE AT FIRST READING: AUGUST 23, 2021 11/0 
VOTE AT PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING: SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 10/0 

Items Originating from the Public Facilities Committee 

8. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR RFQ 060821 CONSULTING SERVICES TO PROVIDE AN EVALUATION 
AND STUDY OF ISSUES RELATED TO BEAUFORT COUNTY PUBLIC BOAT LANDINGS ($312,965.00) 

9. REQUEST TO PURCHASE CATERPILLAR MODEL 323 EXCAVATOR W/ LONG REACH ($221,823.85) 

10. REQUEST TO PURCHASE OF A TIGER TRUCKAT MOWER ($218,622.40)  

11. REQUEST TO PURCHASE PUBLIC WORKS - PURCHASE OF FORD F550 ($149,826.00)  

3



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Text amendment to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Article II, Division 3 (Sheldon Fire District) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services Committee - August 9, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Thomas J. Keaveny, II 
Deputy County Attorney 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Sheldon Fire District currently provides fire service to areas of the Town of Yemassee which are 
located in Beaufort County. The Code of Ordinances is outdated in that it indicates the district does 
not provide service to these areas. The sole purpose of the amendment is to update the description 
of the district’s boundaries to include these areas. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

See above 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The code needs to be updated to accurately reflect the district’s boundaries. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

◊ Motion to approve/deny text amendment 

◊ Move forward to Council for First Reading on August 23, 2021 

 

4

Item 11.



PART I - GENERAL ORDINANCES 
Chapter 42 - FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE II. - FIRE DISTRICTS 
DIVISION 3. SHELDON FIRE DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Beaufort County, South Carolina, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-22 09:11:23 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

DIVISION 3. SHELDON FIRE DISTRICT1 

Sec. 42-81. Creation boundaries. 

There is created a Sheldon Fire District for the purpose of serving all properties located in the County north 
of the Whale Branch and Combahee Rivers  including those areas within the town limits of Yemassee which are 
located in Beaufort County.  

(Ord. No. 2013/8 , 2-11-2013) 

Sec. 42-81.1. Fire district board. 

(a) Membership. There is hereby established a Sheldon Fire District Board, composed of a seven-member Board 
appointed by the Beaufort County Council. The board members shall be appointed at large from the Sheldon 
service area. At no point in time shall an elected official for a municipal, county, state, or federal office serve 
concurrently as a member of the fire district board.  

(b) Terms. Terms of the office shall be four years or reappointed until successors are appointed and qualify. 
Provided, however, that of those first appointed, three shall serve for four years and two shall serve for two 
years, the respective terms of office being designated by County Council in its appointments. The members 
of the board shall serve without pay and shall file an annual report with the Beaufort County Council not 
later than the first of November of each year, showing all activities and disbursements made by the district 
during the fiscal year.  

(Ord. No. 2013/8 , 2-11-2013) 

Sec. 42-81.2. Powers, duties and responsibilities. 

(a) Sheldon Fire District Board. The board shall have the following powers, duties and responsibilities:  

(1) To approve and adopt an annual budget subject to the approval by the county council.  

(2) To implement the annual budget for the operation of the District and approve the expenditure of all 
funds.  

(3) To provide managerial controls to ensure the effective oversight of the Sheldon Fire District's annual 
budget.  

(4) To approve and adopt plans for the purchase of such firefighting, medical and rescue equipment as the 
board deems necessary for the purpose of controlling fires and effecting medical and rescue response 
within the money allocated or made available to the district for such purpose.  

                                                                 

1Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 2013/8 , adopted Feb. 11, 2013, amended div. 3 in its entirety to read as herein set out. 
Former div. 3 pertained to the same subject matter, consisted of §§ 42-81—42-86, and derived from the 
1982 Code.  

5

Item 11.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-22 09:11:23 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

(5) To approve and adopt plans for the selection, procurement of land and construction of buildings, fire 
and EMS stations within the area where firefighting apparatus, medical and rescue equipment shall be 
kept and maintained subject to the approval by the county council.  

(6) Subject to the approval by the county council to approve and adopt plans for borrowing money on such 
terms and for such a period as the Sheldon Fire District board may deem most beneficial for the fire 
district in anticipation of taxes. The indebtedness shall be evidenced by a note issued by Beaufort 
County Council and the county treasurer.  

(7) The fire district board shall be responsible for developing a list of qualified candidates for the position 
of fire chief which shall be presented to the county administrator who shall have the authority, after 
consultation with the fire district board, to hire the fire chief.  

(8) The fire district board in consultation with the county administrator shall be responsible for developing 
performance standards to effectively evaluate the fire chief. The fire district board shall be responsible 
for conducting an annual performance evaluation implementing such performance standards with such 
evaluation being provided to the county administrator for purposes of promotion, demotion, and 
termination. The county administrator shall have the authority to make decisions regarding the 
performance of the fire chief, after consultation with the fire district board, in regards to the 
promotion, demotion, or termination of the fire chief.  

(9) To manage fire and rescue resources and services for the Beaufort County citizenry residing within the 
Sheldon Fire District.  

(10) To approve and adopt policies to ensure that firefighting, rescue and medical equipment is properly 
utilized to the best advantage of the fire district.  

(11) To adopt and approve a "hiring and retention" policy that will comply with established Beaufort County 
Council goals and objectives and provide the district with qualified salaried personnel to effectively 
provide fire suppression and medical services.  

(12) Consistent with the Beaufort County Code Section 2-194, the board shall be responsible for the 
development of a fire district strategic plan, including goals and objectives congruent with the 
comprehensive plan formulated and written by the council, which shall have a scope of five years and 
shall contain specific, measurable and time-phased goals for the current budget year and four out-
years. In addition, the board shall present the strategic plan to the council annually as scheduled by the 
county administrator. The time period for compliance with the ordinance in this respect is six months 
after formulation, finalization and approval of the county's strategic plan.  

(13) To provide a forum for public opinion concerning the Sheldon Fire District's Strategic Plan.  

(14) All board members and staff will adhere to those policies that are adopted in accordance with sections 
2-191 through 2-198 of the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances when conducting administrative and 
managerial functions of the fire district.  

(Ord. No. 2013/8 , 2-11-2013) 

Sec. 42-81.3. Fire chief responsibilities. 

(a) Sheldon Fire District Fire Chief. The Sheldon Fire Chief shall have certain responsibilities related to the 
operation of the Sheldon Fire Department. These responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the 
responsibilities outlined below:  

(1) To prepare and submit an annual budget to the Sheldon Fire District Board for all expenditures of the 
Sheldon Fire District.  

6

Item 11.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-22 09:11:23 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

(2) To provide managerial controls to ensure the effective oversight of the Sheldon Fire District's Annual 
Budget.  

(3) To prepare and submit plans to the Sheldon Fire District Board for the purchase of such firefighting, 
medical and rescue equipment and procurement of land and construction of buildings and fire stations 
as the fire chief deems necessary for the purpose of controlling fires and effecting medical and rescue 
response within the money allocated or made available to the fire chief for such purpose and to ensure 
proper controls and coordination of all purchasing activities in accordance with Beaufort County 
Procurement requirements.  

(4) To prepare and make recommendations, including plans, to the Sheldon Fire District Board for the 
selection and procurement of firefighting, medical and rescue equipment.  

(5) To prepare and submit plans in compliance with the Sheldon Fire District Hiring Policy for the selection 
and hiring of salaried and non-salaried personnel staff to effectively provide fire protection services 
and serve the Beaufort County citizenry residing within the Sheldon Fire District.  

(6) To hire, supervise, train, promote, provide direction, discipline and terminate Sheldon Fire District 
employees in compliance with Sheldon Fire District policies and procedures.  

(7) To administer annual performance standards as established by the Sheldon Fire District policies and 
procedures to effectively evaluate fire district employee's work performance.  

(8) To plan and organize activities of the fire district regarding utilization of personnel, facilities and 
equipment, fire prevention, public education, training, code enforcement, fire suppression, rescue and 
emergency medical service.  

(9) To establish overall equipment specification requirements and major equipment purchase 
recommendations.  

(10) To ensure the proper upkeep, maintenance, repair and inspection of Sheldon Fire District fire 
apparatus and equipment.  

(11) To respond to public inquiries and aid in conflict resolution with citizens and fire/rescue personnel.  

(12) To represent the Sheldon Fire District on various community commissions, committees and public 
safety concerns.  

(13) To approve and adopt such operational rules and regulations as he/she may deem proper and 
necessary to ensure that the equipment is used and firefighting service is provided to the best 
advantage of the district.  

(14) To present the Sheldon Fire District's Strategic Plan, in coordination with the Sheldon Fire District 
Board, to the Beaufort County Council annually as scheduled by the county administrator. The time 
period for compliance with the ordinance in this respect is six months after formulation, finalization 
and approval of the county's strategic plan.  

(15) To provide an initial forum for public opinion concerning the Sheldon Fire District's Strategic Plan.  

(16) To make recommendations and presentations, in coordination with the Sheldon Fire District 
Commission, to Beaufort County Council for final judgment concerning the Sheldon Fire District's 
Strategic Plan.  

(17) To take all actions necessary to ensure that the district remains eligible to receive funds pursuant to 
South Carolina Code of Laws § 23-9-310 et seq.  

(Ord. No. 2013/8 , 2-11-2013) 

7

Item 11.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-22 09:11:23 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

Sec. 42-82. Enforcement of fire laws. 

All members of the Sheldon Fire District may direct and control traffic at the scene of any fire, medical or 
rescue emergency in the area of the district and enforce the state laws relating to the following of fire, medical and 
rescue apparatus, the crossing of fire hose or interfering with firefighters in the discharge of their duties in 
connection with a fire, medical or rescue emergency in a like manner as provided for the enforcement of such laws 
by peace officers.  

(Ord. No. 2013/8 , 2-11-2013) 

Sec. 42-83. Unlawful acts; penalties. 

It is unlawful to interfere with a member of a fire department in the discharge of his duties in the Sheldon 
Fire District or to interfere with any fire, medical or rescue apparatus used by the fire department in the district 
and any person so offending shall be subject to a fine not to exceed $200.00 or imprisonment not to exceed 30 
days.  

(Ord. No. 2013/8 , 2-11-2013) 

Secs. 42-84—42-115. Reserved. 

 

8

Item 11.



ORDINANCE  2021/ _____ 

 

TEXT AMENDMENTS TO BEAUFORT COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 42, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 3, SECTION 42.-81 TO UPDATE BOUNDARIES. 

 

 WHEREAS deleted text is stricken through; added text is underlined. 

 

 Adopted this ______ day of __________, 202___. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Sarah w. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Third reading: 

9

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Section 3.1.60 (Consolidated Use Table) and 
Section 4.1.190 (Recreation Facility: Campgrounds) to revise the Campground Standards 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Beaufort County Council – September 13, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Acting Director, Planning and Zoning  

10 minutes needed for presentation. 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2018, the Beaufort County Planning Department initiated a series of amendments to its campground 
standards. These amendments were partially in response to a growing popularity of upscale, amenity-based 
RV resorts. At the time, there was one definition and one set of standards for campgrounds. The amendments 
created three types of campgrounds – primitive, semi-developed, and developed. This distinction directed low-
impact, smaller campgrounds toward the rural areas of the county while larger RV resorts were limited to 
more developed areas of the county with sewer and water. The standards also provided time limits for 
campers. Over the last two years, staff identified some areas of current standards that could be strengthened 
or provided with additional clarity. The Beaufort County Planning Commission unanimously supported these 
amendments at their August 2 Meeting. The Natural Resources Committee unanimously supported these 
amendments at their September 7 meeting. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

This series of amendments currently under consideration build on the changes made in 2018 and address the 
following issues: 

 The existing language requiring time limits for campers could lead to a loophole where a camper 
simply switches sites or forgoes one night to renew the time limit. 

 Apparent discrepancies between the consolidated use table and the campground standards have been 
corrected. 

 100-foot-wide opaque buffers are required for all three campground types. 

 More clarity is provided on what types of trailers and RVs are permitted in each campground type. 

 Semi-developed and Developed campgrounds are required to be served by public sewer and water. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No Fiscal Impact 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny proposed amendments to revise the Campground Standards in the Community 
Development Code. 

 

10

Item 12.



ORDINANCE 2021 / __ 

  

 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): 

SECTION 3.1.60 (CONSOLIDATED USE TABLE) AND SECTION 4.1.190 

(RECREATION FACILITY: CAMPGROUNDS) TO REVISE THE CAMPGROUND 

STANDARDS 

 

 WHEREAS, added text is highlighted in yellow and underlined.  

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of __________ 2021. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 
 

  

11

Item 12.



 

4.1.190  Recreation Facility: Campgrounds  

Campgrounds shall be defined as comply with the following:  

A. Primitive Campground. A campground accessible by walk-in, equestrian, motorized 
trail vehicles or passenger vehicles vehicular traffic where basic facilities may be 
provided for the comfort and convenience of the campers. Primitive Campgrounds shall 
comply with the following: 

1. Length of Stay. All campers are limited to a 14-day length of stay. All camping units 
may stay for a period of time not to exceed 14 days in any given 30 day period. 

2. Zones. Primitive Campgrounds are allowed in the Tl Natural Preserve zone and the 
all T2 Rural zones (See Section 3.1.60 Consolidated Use Table).  

3. Buffers. This use shall be screened with a 100-ft wide, opaque, visual buffer next to 
all property lines.  Any tent sites shall be located no less than 30 feet from any 
property line. 

4. Class A, B+, and C motorized No RV's are prohibited. Class B camper vans are 
allowed. or camping trailers over 20 feet in length shall be allowed. 

5. Tree Requirement. Existing Trees shall be left on site, when practical. If there are no 
trees between campsites at least two trees shall be planted between each campsite. 

6. Accessory Uses. Facilities for the comfort and convenience of the camper may be 
provided such as bathing facilities, flushing toilets, grills, tables, fire pits, fire circles, 
and refuse collection. 

B. Semi- Developed Campground. A campground, with two or more campsites, for a 
camping unit, accessible by walk-in, pack-in, equestrian campers, motorized trail vehicles 
or vehicular traffic. Semi-Developed Campgrounds shall comply with the following: 

1. Length of Stay. All camping units are limited to a 30-day length of stay. All camping 
units may stay for a period of time not to exceed 30 days in any given 60 day period. 

2. Zones. Semi-Developed Campgrounds can be located within all T2 Rural Zones (See 
Section 3.1.60 Consolidated Use Table). (neighborhood and Rural Center). 

3. Public Sewer and Water: Semi-Developed Campgrounds shall be served by public 
sewer and water. 

4. Buffers. This use shall be screened with a 100-ft wide, opaque, visual buffer next to 
all property lines. 

5. Minimum RV Pad Size. If RV pads are provided they shall be a minimum of 1,600 
square feet. This does not include tent only sites. A maximum number of 200 camp 
sites. 

6. Tree Requirement. Existing trees shall be left between all campsites and/or RV Pads, 
to the maximum extent practicable. If there are no trees between campsites, tent sites 
or RV pads, at least two trees shall be planted between each campsite, tent site or RV 
pad. 

7. Accessory Uses. Recreational facilities and amenities shall be for the purpose of the 
camper enjoyment including sports facilities, equipment for amusement, playground 
facilities, swimming pools and a camp store/ office. These amenities shall not be for 
general public use and shall not exceed 3,000 square feet. 

12

Item 12.



   

C. Developed Campground. A campground with two or more campsites, for a camping 
unit, accessible by walk-in, pack-in, equestrian campers, motorized trail vehicles or 
vehicular traffic. Sites may be substantially developed with tables, refuse containers, 
flush toilets, bathing facilities, and one or more service buildings. These campsites may 
have individual water, sewer, and electrical connections. Developed Campgrounds shall 
comply with the following: 

1. Length of Stay. All camping units are limited to a 30-day length of stay. All camping 
units may stay for a period of time not to exceed 30 days in any given 60 day period. 

2. Zones. Developed Campgrounds can be located within the T2 (only Rural Center 
Zone), C4 Community Center Mixed Use and C5 Regional Center Mixed Use. (See 
Section 3.1.60 Consolidated Use Table).  

3. Public Sewer and Water: Developed Campgrounds shall be served by public sewer 
and water. 

4. Buffers. This use shall be screened with a 100-ft wide, opaque, visual buffer next to 
all property lines. 

5. Minimum RV Pad Size. If RV pads are provided they shall be a minimum of 1,600 
square feet. A maximum number of 400 camp sites. 

6. Tree Requirement. Existing trees shall be left between all campsites and/ or RV 
pads, to the maximum extent practical. If there are no trees between campsites or RV 
pads, at least two trees shall be planted between each campsite, tent site or RV Pad. 

7. Accessory Uses. Recreational facilities and rural recreation businesses including, but 
not limited to zip lines, horse riding trails, arcades, camp stores, small cafes, small 
offices, or a club house.  The size, intensity and scale of such accessory uses 

 

  

13

Item 12.



 

Table 3.1.60. Consolidated Use Table (continued) 
 

Land Use Type T1 

N 
T2R 

T2 

RL 

T2 

RN 

T2 

RNO 

T2 

RC 
T3E 

T3 

HN 

T3 

N 

T3 

NO 

T4 

HC 

T4 

VC 

T4 

HCO 

T4 

NC 
C3 C4 C5 SI 

RECREATION, EDUCATION, SAFETY, PUBLIC ASSEMBLY 

13. Recreation Facility: Primitive 

Campground 
P P 

P  

-- 

P 

-- 

P 

-- 

P 

-- 
-- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

14. Recreation Facility: Semi-

Developed Campground 
-- P P P P P -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

15. Recreation Facility: Developed 

Campground 
-- -- -- -- -- P -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P P -- 

16. Ecotourism S C -- C C C -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

17. School: Public or Private -- -- -- -- -- S -- -- -- S P P P P P P -- -- 

18. School: Specialized 

Training/Studio 
-- -- -- -- -- S -- -- -- P P P P P P P P P 

19. School: College or University -- -- -- -- -- S -- -- -- -- S -- S S S S S -- 

Land Use Type T1 

N 
T2R 

T2 

RL 

T2 

RN 

T2 

RNO 

T2 

RC 
T3E 

T3 

HN 

T3 

N 

T3 

NO 

T4 

HC 

T4 

VC 

T4 

HCO 

T4 

NC 
C3 C4 C5 SI 

“P” indicates a Use that is Permitted By Right. 

“C” indicates a Use that is Permitted with Conditions. 

“S” indicates a Use that is Permitted as a Special Use. 

“TCP” indicates a Use that is permitted only as part of a Traditional Community Plan under the requirements in Division 2.3 

"--" indicates a Use that is not permitted. 

 

14

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Resolution to Repurpose Community Foundation of the Lowcountry’s 2021 Local ATAX Grant Award 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee, September 20, 2021 

 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Shannon Milroy, Grants Administrator 

10 minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Finance Committee Vote: February 25, 2021 

Council Vote: Third Reading and Approval – April 12, 2021  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Request to repurpose 2021 Local ATAX Grant Award made to Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry. See attached letter from Billy Keyserling explaining the requested change. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No fiscal impact 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Allow Community Foundation of the Lowcountry to repurpose their award 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve a resolution to repurpose Community Foundation of the Lowcountry’s 2021 Local 
ATAX Grant Award 

Motion to deny a resolution to repurpose Community Foundation of the Lowcountry’s 2021 Local 
ATAX Grant Award 

 

 

15

Item 14.



16

Item 14.



17

Item 14.



18

Item 14.



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021/ ___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROPRIATE GRANT AWARDS TO LOCAL ENTITIES FROM THE 

COUNTY'S LOCAL (3%) ACCOMMODATIONS TAX AND LOCAL HOSPITALITY TAX 

COLLECTIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021. 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council ("County Council") is authorized to utilize Local 

Accommodations Tax ("Local A-Tax") Funds for limited tourism-based purposes described in Beaufort 

County Code Ordinance Sec. 66-44; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Ordinance Sec. 66-534 describes permitted uses of the 

hospitality tax fund 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Code Ordinance Sec. 66-44(b) states "authorization to utilize any 

funds from the 'County of Beaufort, South Carolina, Local Accommodations Tax Account' shall be by 

ordinance duly adopted by the County Council; and 

WHEREAS, Section 66-534(b) states “authorization to utilize any funds from the "County of 

Beaufort, South Carolina Hospitality Tax Account," shall be by ordinance duly adopted by the county 

council; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County started the Local Accommodation Tax and Local Hospitality Tax 

application process in September of 2020, with the closing of applications on December 31, 2020. The 

applications were reviewed by the Local Accommodation Tax and Local Hospitality Tax Committee 

for compliance with the Local Statutes and their individual need and merit; and 

WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in the best interest of its citizens, residents, visitors 

and tourists to provide the recommended funds to local entities and projects as set forth in the attached 

"Exhibit A" which is incorporated herein by reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL, that 

appropriations shall be made in the form of grant awards to local entities from Beaufort County's Local 

Accommodations Tax Funds and Hospitality Tax Funds as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

     BY:___________________________________________ 

      Joseph Passiment, Jr. 

ATTEST: 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

Chronology: 

Third and Final Reading:____________  

Public Hearing: _________  

Second Reading:__________ 

First Reading: _____________ 

19

Item 14.



Beaufort County 
2021 Local Accommodations and Hospitality Tax

Requested  Amount  Group 
Event Sponsor Source of Funding Requested Award Reason

Whitehall Boardwalk  City of Beaufort  Local Atax 350,000.00$                    350,000.00$                    Bridge to connect to Whitehall Park

Phase II Penn Center Penn Center Local Atax 968,000.00$                    ‐$                                 

Resolution 2019/31 states "Applicants must submit final accounting 
reports for an award before receiving a subsequent award". Penn 
Center still has $800,000 remaining in Phase I that they have not spent. 
Penn Center will need to apply next year.

Website Development Historic Port Royal Foundation & Museum Website Local Atax 5,000.00$                        5,000.00$                        The only amount included in the budget
Reconstruction Era Park ‐ Porter's Chapel Town of Port Royal Local Atax 240,500.00$                    240,500.00$                    Reconstruction Era Park town put in an additional $60,000

Southeast Business Summit Beaufort County Black Chamber of Commerce Local Atax 11,700.00$                      ‐$                                 

Resolution 2019/31 states "Applicants must submit final accounting 
reports for an award before receiving a subsequent award". 

Kentucky Derby Beaufort County Black Chamber of Commerce Local Atax 11,700.00$                     
 $11,700 rolled over 
from prior year 

Resolution 2019/31 states "Applicants must submit final accounting 
reports for an award before receiving a subsequent award". 

Gullah Christmas Jazz & Art Festival Beaufort County Black Chamber of Commerce Local Atax 11,700.00$                      ‐$                                 

Resolution 2019/31 states "Applicants must submit final accounting 
reports for an award before receiving a subsequent award". 

Broad River Fishing Pier Beaufort County Capital Projects Local Atax 114,000.00$                    114,000.00$                    95,000 plus 20% contingency
Beaufort Oyster Festival Beaufort Area Hospitality Association Local Htax 10,000.00$                      2,460.00$                        Only for marketing and promotional , police fire & security

Beaufort Oyster Festival Beaufort Area Hospitality Association Local Atax 10,000.00$                     
 $3,186 rollover from 

prior year  Only marketing in Local Accommodations tax is allocated to DMO's 
Stokes Cottage (1313 Congress Street) Community Foundation of the Lowcountry Local Atax 149,850.00$                    ‐$                                  These are privately owned, the owners will not transfer property Reconstruction Era Park
Brick Baptist Church Study House Community Foundation of the Lowcountry Local Atax 267,255.00$                    267,255.00$                    Reconstruction Era Park Reconstruction Era Park
Grand Army Hall Community Foundation of the Lowcountry Local Atax 115,200.00$                    115,200.00$                    Reconstruction Era Park Reconstruction Era Park
Dixie Jr. Boys and Dixie Boys State Beaufort County Parks & Recreation Local Atax 28,500.00$                      28,500.00$                      Marketing and promotional needs for the tournament
Dixie Softball State Tournament Beaufort County Parks & Recreation Local Atax 28,500.00$                      28,500.00$                      Marketing and promotional needs for the tournament
Marketing Hilton Head Island Airport Local Htax 30,000.00$                      30,000.00$                      Marketing and promotional items
Annual Boat Landing Maintenance Beaufort County Public Works Local Htax 250,000.00$                    200,000.00$                    Boat landing improvements and study
Beaufort Executive Terminal Renovation Beaufort Executive Airport Local Htax 80,000.00$                      80,000.00$                      Needed improvements to bring new tourism
Spanish Moss Trail Battery Creek Bridge Repair Beaufort County Capital Projects Local Htax 359,500.00$                    359,500.00$                   
Coastal Discovery Museum Building of a Museum on HHI Local Htax 750,000.00$                    750,000.00$                   
Renovation of Boundary Street Tennis Courts Beaufort County Parks & Recreation Local Htax 384,741.00$                    384,741.00$                   
Mitchellville Freedom Park  Building of a Museum on HHI Local Htax 575,000.00$                    575,000.00$                    Awarded from HTAX

4,751,146.00$                3,530,656.00$               
3,632,533.00$                3,632,533.00$               
(1,118,613.00)$               101,877.00$                   

5

Item 6.

20

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A 

MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL R112-031-

000-0628-0000    

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council Meeting 9-27-21 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Unanimously Approved at PFC on 9-20-21 

Beaufort County was granted a 40’ drainage easement by William D. Trask and Harold E. Trask, Jr, 

recorded in Deed Book 567 on Pages 1768-1769 on 12- 28-1990. The existing drainage ditch does not lie 

in the area depicted on the Original Easement Plat, and a portion of the Original Drainage Easement associated 

with parcel  R112-031-000-0628-0000 was abandoned. Ditch is located off Hwy 170 near Ashton Overlook Dr. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

A Modification to the original easement will correct the drainage easement location to the existing ditch 

location. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approving County Administrator to execute Modification of Drainage Easement associated 
with Parcel R112-031-000-0628-0000 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/Deny  County Administrator to execute Modification of Drainage Easement associated with 

Parcel R112-031-000-0628-0000. 

(Next Step) Move forward with ordinance process 

 

21

Item 15.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


 1 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) MODIFICATION OF 

 ) DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

 ) (ORB 567 PAGE 1768) 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT ) (PB 40 PAGE 52) 

THIS MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT (“Modification”) is made effective 

August 1, 2021, by and between ASHTON POINTE PROPERTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Virginia 

limited partnership (“Owner”), and BEAUFORT COUNTY, a body politic and political subdivision of the 

State of South Carolina (“County”). 

WHEREAS, the Owner owns real property located in the Town of Port Royal, Beaufort County, 

South Carolina more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein 

(“Burdened Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner’s predecessor in interest granted to the County a drainage easement over 

certain portions of the Burdened Property by that certain Drainage Easement dated September 7, 1990 and 

recorded in the Office of the Beaufort County Register of Deeds in Book 567 at Page 1768 (the “Original 

Drainage Easement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Original Drainage Easement referenced a Sketch Map titled “Drainage Canal 

Easement Across the Lands Between S.C. Hwy. 20 and S.C. Hwy. 802”, which such Sketch Map was later 

recorded in the Beaufort County Register of Deeds’ Office in Plat Book 40 at Page 52 (said Sketch Map, 

the “Original Easement Plat”) and 

WHEREAS, because (i) the existing drainage ditch on the Burdened Property, as constructed, does 

not lie in the area depicted on the Original Easement Plat, and (ii) a portion of the Original Drainage 

Easement was abandoned by the County, the parties hereof have agreed to this Modification to amend the 

terms of the Original Drainage Easement to correctly depict and describe the location of the Revised 

Drainage Easement, as defined and as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for Ten Dollars and no other consideration, the legal sufficiency of which 

the parties expressly acknowledge, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Drainage Easement. Owner hereby grants, conveys and releases, and by these presents does 

grant, convey, and release unto the County, its successors and assigns, a drainage easement in, over, 

and through those areas within the Burdened Property labeled as “Proposed 40’ Ditch Esmt. (“Revised 

Drainage Easement”) on that certain plat entitled “Subdivision Plat Also Showing New Wetland 

Buffers & Ditch Easement” prepared by  Beaufort Surveying, Inc. dated February 14, 2006, last revised 

January 30, 2008, and attached hereto as Exhibit B (“Revised Drainage Easement Plat”). The County 

shall not materially disrupt nor unreasonably interfere with Owner, or its tenants, invitees, agents, 

lessees or principals’ use of the Burdened Property while exercising its rights hereunder, nor shall 

Owner materially or unreasonably interfere or impede the County’s easement rights hereunder. 

2. Modification of Original Easement and Original Easement Plat.  The Original Drainage Easement 

is hereby modified by removing all references to the Original Easement Plat and replacing the same 

with the Revised Drainage Easement Plat.  The Original Easement Plat is replaced by the Revised 

Drainage Easement Plat. The depiction and location of the Original Drainage Easement on the 

Burdened Property, as shown on the Original Easement Plat, is hereby replaced with the Revised 

Drainage Easement as depicted on the Revised Drainage Easement Plat.  To the extent the Original 

Drainage Easement granted to the County easement rights over the Burdened Property not located 

22

Item 15.



 2 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

within Revised Drainage Easement as shown on the Revised Drainage Easement Plat, such easement 

rights are hereby terminated and abandoned, including without limitation, any easement rights located 

within the hatched area on the Revised Drainage Easement Plat labeled as “To Be Filled 0.639 acres”. 

3. Modification of Original Easement Terms. The provisions and terms set forth in the Original 

Drainage Easement are hereby modified as follows: 

a. All County inspection and maintenance work to the Revised Drainage Easement shall be 

conducted between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

Notwithstanding the preceding, the County may access the Revised Drainage Easement at any 

time and any day in the event of emergency to conduct emergency repairs or maintenance. The 

County shall maintain the Revised Drainage Easement to accommodate the flow of drainage and 

prevent the growth of weeds and underbrush within the Revised Drainage Easement. 

b. The County’s access to the Revised Drainage Easement is limited to the roadways within the 

Burdened Property. 

c. Section 4 “Special Provisions” of the Original Drainage Easement is no longer applicable and is 

hereby deleted in its entirety. 

d. The Owner shall have the right to maintain, repair and reconstruct the existing Ashton Overlook 

Drive that crosses the Revised Drainage Easement. 

e. The Owner shall have the right to use the Burdened Properly, so long as said use does not impede 

drainage through the Revised Drainage Easement or damage or compromise any drainage 

infrastructure installed by the County. Such rights shall include the right to run conduits for 

electrical, cable, internet, telephone and other utility wiring across the Revised Drainage 

Easement. 

4. Severability. In the event any provision hereof is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity 

or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof and this 

Modification shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were 

omitted. 

5. Remedies. In the event of any breach of the terms and conditions of this Modification, the non-

breaching party shall be entitled to bring an action in law or in equity against the breaching party. All 

remedies shall be available to the non-breaching party including, but not limited to, specific 

performance and actual damages. 

6. Attorney’s Fees and Costs. In the event it is necessary for any party to this Modification to initiate 

any legal proceeding whatsoever for the purpose of enforcing its rights under this Modification, the 

prevailing party is entitled to recover any and all expenses, including but not limited to. court costs and 

reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in connection therewith, from the non-prevailing party. 

7. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed, governed and interpreted in accordance with the 

laws of State of South Carolina. 

8. Successors and Assigns. This Modification shall run with the Burdened Property and shall be binding 

upon the Owner and the County, and their respective successors and assigns. 

9. Miscellaneous. This Modification shall be recorded in the Beaufort County Register of Deeds Office. 

23

Item 15.



 3 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

10. Amendments to be Written. There are no oral understandings, terms or conditions, or no party hereto 

has relied any representations, express or implied, not contained in this Modification. This Modification 

may not be amended or further modified except by written modification executed by the parties hereto. 

  

24

Item 15.



 4 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

WITNESS our hands and seals effective as of the date first written above 

 

WITNESSES:  Ashton Pointe Property Limited Partnership, a Virginia 

limited partnership 

   By: HHHunt Corporation 

   Its: General Partner 

 

    

By: Brian C. Myers 

Its: Vice President 

  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ) 

  ) NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF WAKE  ) 

I, the undersigned     

 , a Notary Public for the State of North Carolina, do hereby certify 

that Brian C. Myers, Vice President of HHHunt Corporation, the general partner of Ashton Pointe 

Property Limited Partnership, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due 

execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and official seal this the   day of            ,  

2021. 

 (SEAL) 

Notary Public 

My commission expires:   

  

25

Item 15.



 5 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

WITNESSES:  Beaufort County, a body politic and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina 

    

    

By: Eric L. Greenway 

Its: County Administrator 

  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

  ) NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  ) 

I, the undersigned     

 , a Notary Public for the State of North Carolina, do hereby certify 

that     ,  

    of Beaufort 

County, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the 

foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and official seal this the   day of            ,  

2021. 

 (SEAL) 

Notary Public 

My commission expires:   

  

26

Item 15.



 6 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Legal Description of Burdened Property 

 

  

27

Item 15.



Exhibit "B"

28

Item 15.



 
1 

ORDINANCE NO.  2021/________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 

A MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL 

R112-031-000-0628-0000    

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County was granted a 40’ drainage easement by William D. Trask 

and Harold E. Trask, Jr, recorded in Deed Book 567 on Pages 1768-1769 on December 28, 1990 
(the “Original Drainage Easement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Original Drainage Easement referenced a Sketch Map titled “Drainage Canal 

Easement Across the Lands Between S.C. Hwy. 20 and S.C. Hwy. 802”, which such Sketch Map was later 

recorded in the Beaufort County Register of Deeds’ Office in Plat Book 40 at Page 52 (said Sketch Map, 

the “Original Easement Plat”); and 

WHEREAS, the existing drainage ditch does not lie in the area depicted on the Original Easement 

Plat, and a portion of the Original Drainage Easement associated with parcel  R112-031-000-0628-0000 

located in the Town of Port Royal, Beaufort County, South Carolina was abandoned ; and 

WHEREAS, a modification of the Original Drainage Easement is necessary to amend the terms 

of the Original Drainage Easement to correctly depict and describe the location of the Revised Drainage 

Easement as defined in the attached Modification of Drainage Easement (ORB 567 Page 1768) (PB 40 

Page 52); and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Beaufort County to authorize the County 

Administrator to execute the attached Modification of Drainage Easement (ORB 567 Page 1768) (PB 

40 Page 52) to correctly depict the current location of the drainage easement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council hereby authorizes the 

County Administrator to execute documents associated with the revised drainage easement located 

on parcel  R112-031-000-0628-0000 as described in the attached Modification of Drainage 

Easement (ORB 567 Page 1768) (PB 40 Page 52). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29

Item 15.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


 
2 

 

ADOPTED this ____ day of __________, 2021. 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 
 

30

Item 15.



RESOLUTION 2021/_____ 

 

 WHEREAS, on June 27, 2016 Beaufort County adopted a new Beaufort 

County Personnel Handbook by virtue of Resolution 2016/11; and 

 WHEREAS,  Beaufort County, the nation, and indeed the world has suffered 

the effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic; and 

 WHEREAS, the COVID-19 Pandemic has required governments and 

organizations to develop and adopt creative means, methods, and policies to mitigate 

the devastating effects of the pandemic on the lives of citizens, residents, and 

employees, both individually and collectively; and 

 WHEREAS,  the lives of people who are employed by Beaufort County have 

been impacted directly by the pandemic - - some as a result of their service to the 

County and others simply as a result of the pervasiveness of the COVID-19 virus; 

and 

 WHEREAS, County Council recognizes that the people who are employed 

by the County are its most valuable resource, recognizes that there comes an inherent 

responsibility to protect those people in a manner which is commensurate with their 

value and contributions to the organization and recognizes further that benefits 

programs which the County has, heretofore adopted, may be insufficient to address 

the needs and demands of employees who are diagnosed with, and suffer the effects 

of, the COVID-19 virus - - especially those whose conditions are severe enough to 

require hospitalization. For all these reasons County Council does hereby amend 

Beaufort County’s Personnel Handbook by adopting this Resolution the purpose of 

which is to supplement Resolution 2016/11 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Beaufort County Council 

does hereby supplement Resolution 2016/11 as follows: 

1. Council hereby adopts and approves the immediate implementation of a 

COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program as set forth in 

Exhibit “A” the terms of which are incorporated herein verbatim. 

2. Beaufort County Personnel Handbook is hereby amended to add Paragraph 

4.2.23, COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program and that 

the terms of Exhibit “A” are incorporated into the Handbook as if they 

were set forth therein verbatim. 

31

Item 16.



3. The County Administrator shall have full and complete authority over the 

COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program. This includes 

the authority to implement it, suspend it, reimplement it and to terminate 

or dissolve it when, in his or her sole discretion he believes it is appropriate 

and in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit “A”. 

 

ADOPTED this ______day of ____________, 2021. 

 

      BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Sarah Brock, 

Clerk to Council 

 

  

32

Item 16.



 EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Beaufort County Standard Operating Procedure  

 

for 

 

Implementing the COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program 

 

Requirement: 

In recognizing that our employees are our most valuable resources, there comes an inherent 

responsibility to protect those resources in a manner commensurate with their value to the 

organization.  The COVID-19 Pandemic has placed unprecedented strain on employees and their families 

directly impacted by this disease.  Existing benefit programs which afford employees time off with an 

uninterrupted income stream, i.e., COVID Leave, Personal Leave, Sick Leave and the Employee 

Emergency Leave Transfer Bank, may leave some needs unmet for employees who are diagnosed as 

COVID-19 positive, especially those whose illness is severe enough to require hospitalization. 

 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this program is to provide relief for employees who have been hospitalized because of 

their COVID-19 diagnosis, and who have extinguished all available options for paid time off as they 

battle their illness during their inpatient status until they can return to work.  It provides a mechanism to 

allow employees to donate a portion of their Sick Leave balance to a central COVID-19 Inpatient 

Employee Leave Bank to benefit their fellow employees who are in need and meet specific criteria. 

 

Donor Criteria: 

To be eligible to donate to the COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Bank, an employee: 

 Must have a Sick Leave balance of no less than 100 hours at the time of donation. 

 May donate no more than 50% of their Sick Leave balance. 

 May not designate individual recipient(s) of the Sick Leave time donated.   

 

Recipient Criteria: 

To be eligible to receive Sick Leave from the COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Bank, a recipient: 

 Must be a full-time employee with benefits; or  

 Be a part-time employee who has been employed by Beaufort County for 12 consecutive 

months or more. 

 Must either be currently hospitalized as an in-patient as a result of COVID-19; or  

 Must be convalescing following in-patient treatment for COVID-19 and not yet medically cleared 

to return to work. 

 

Donation Process: 

Human Resources will inform employees of the opportunity to donate to the COVID-19 Inpatient 

Employee Leave Bank and will make donation forms available.   The donation forms, in addition to 

employee identification data, will also contain other information relative to donor eligibility, such as 

current Sick Leave balance.  Donation forms will be submitted directly to Human Resources for 

33

Item 16.



verification of eligibility. Neither supervisor, nor department director approval is needed on the Donor 

Request Form before submitting it to Human Resources.  A copy of the final completed and approved 

form will be provided to the employee and the original will be placed in the employee’s personnel file. 

 

Other than the Donor criteria listed above, there is no limitation on the number of times an employee 

may donate to the COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Bank.  However, in order for leave balances to 

settle and be properly reflected in MUNIS and NOVAtime, employees will be limited to submitting 

donation requests no more often than once every thirty days. 

 

Request and Approval Process: 

Requests for COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave will be initiated by the recipient employee’s supervisor 

or department director after all other forms of available paid time off have been extinguished.   

 

Requests will be initiated on a form provided by Human Resources and will be signed by the Department 

Director and submitted to Human Resources for coordination.  Human Resources will verify the medical 

facts to support the request.  After Human Resources coordination, the request will be submitted to the 

County Administrator, or designee, for final approval and routed back to Human Resources for 

processing.  Human Resources will work with the employee’s supervisor and the Finance Department to 

ensure approved leave is applied as appropriate. 

 

Approval for COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave may be made in increments of one full work shift or 

more, not to exceed the number of shifts worked in a single pay period. For example, a request for an 

employee with a Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm schedule will be made in 8-hour 

increments, not to exceed 80 total hours per request.  If the employee requires more time, and still 

meets the criteria established for eligibility, then a subsequent request must be submitted for 

consideration. 

 

In the case of part-time employees, COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave may be granted in an amount 

not to exceed the employee’s average number of hours worked per pay period over the preceding six 

months.  The average number of hours will be rounded up to the nearest whole number for purposes of 

awarding COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave. 

 

Program Administration: 

The COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program will be administered primarily by Human 

Resources, with assistance from the Finance Department.  At this time, there is no recommended end 

date for the program as it is intended to be responsive to the dynamic threat that COVID-19 imposes to 

employees.  At such time that the threat is significantly diminished or is eliminated, Human Resources 

will make a recommendation to the County Administrator for its dissolution.   

 

Upon termination of the COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program by the County 

Administrator, the remaining balance in the COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Bank will be 

transferred to the Employee Emergency Leave Transfer Bank. 

34

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

              Resolution to accept Federal Grant: Award # 1H79TI084543-01 in the amount of    

              $1,934.988 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 

September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Steve Donaldson, Director, Beaufort County Alcohol & Drug Abuse Department 

5 Minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

N/A 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

BC First Responders Project will serve the entire county of Beaufort. The project will employ three 
distinct phases: 1.) Increase access to naloxone to first responders; 2.) to educate the responders as 
well as the community with regards to the availability of Naloxone. Its function, and administration 
protocol; 3.) conduct training to first responders with regard to safe handling of  dangerous 
substances such as  fentanyl and carfentanyl; and 4.) secure staffing to conduct outreach, education, 
training, and implementation of Community Outreach Paramedic Education Teams (COPE) comprised 
of first responders and treatment professionals to conduct home visits within 3 days of a overdose 
event to offer support, referrals, with the goal of securing recovery services to individuals with opioid 
use disorders. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve acceptance of Federal Grant: Award # 1H79TI084543-01  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve acceptance of Federal Grant: Award #1H79TI084543 or Motion to disapprove the 
acceptance of Federal Grant: Award # 1H79TI084543-01 

 

35

Item 17.



RESOLUTION 2021/_____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO  ACCEPT A 

GRANT OFFERED BY THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES, SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

ADMINISTRATION, CENTER FOR SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT 

 

Whereas, there has been made available certain grant funds to be administered by the 

United States Department of Health and Human Services, to be awarded to Beaufort County 

Emergency Services and Beaufort County Alcohol and Drug Abuse Department; and 

Whereas, Beaufort County has submitted to the Department of Health and Human 

Services, and the Department of Health and Human Services has awarded Beaufort County , the 

following: 

1. Grant Number 1H79TI084543 in the amount of $1,934,988  

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED, at a duly called meeting of Beaufort County Council, 

that the County Administrator is hereby provided the authority necessary to execute the 

aforementioned grant from the United States Department of Health and Human Services, 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center for Substance Abuse 

Treatment.  

Adopted this _____ day of _________________, 2021     

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

Clerk to Council 

 

____________________ 

Sarah Brock 

 

 

36

Item 17.



37

Item 17.



38

Item 17.



39

Item 17.



40

Item 17.



41

Item 17.



42

Item 17.



43

Item 17.



44

Item 17.



45

Item 17.



46

Item 17.



47

Item 17.



48

Item 17.



49

Item 17.



50

Item 17.



51

Item 17.



52

Item 17.



53

Item 17.



54

Item 17.



55

Item 17.



56

Item 17.



57

Item 17.



58

Item 17.



59

Item 17.



60

Item 17.



61

Item 17.



62

Item 17.



63

Item 17.



64

Item 17.



65

Item 17.



66

Item 17.



67

Item 17.



68

Item 17.



69

Item 17.



70

Item 17.



71

Item 17.



72

Item 17.



73

Item 17.



74

Item 17.



75

Item 17.



76

Item 17.



77

Item 17.



78

Item 17.



79

Item 17.



80

Item 17.



81

Item 17.



82

Item 17.



83

Item 17.



84

Item 17.



85

Item 17.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

               FY21 Carryover Budget Items 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee- August 16th, 2021 

 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Pinky Harriott, Budget Director 

10 minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

FY21 Carryover Items into FY22 as discussed during FY22 Budget Workshops. List Attached  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Carrying over capital items as requested during budget process for FY22. 

Total Carryover Amount: $4,974,270.44 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny Ordinance to FY21 Carryover Budget Items Move forward to Council for 
Second Reading. 

 

 

86

Item 1.



ORDINANCE 2021/____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND BEAUFORT COUNTY ORDINANCE 2020/_30__ FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 BEAUFORT COUNTY BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

CARRYOVER OF CERTAIN EXPENDITURES FROM FY 2020-21. 

 

WHEREAS, on June _30th___, 2021, Beaufort County Council adopted Ordinance 

No. 2021/_30_ which sets the County's FY 2021-2022 budget and associated expenditures; 

and 

WHEREAS, in the interest of good accounting practices and transparency in the budget 

process it is  beneficial and necessary to amend the budget to reflect certain funds and expenses 

which are to be carried over from the 2020-21 budget to the 2021-22 budget; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by Beaufort County Council that the FY 

2021-2022 Beaufort County Budget Ordinance (Ordinance 2021/_30_) is hereby amended as 

shown on the attached "Exhibit A" and incorporated herein by  reference. 

 

DONE this _________ day of September 2021. 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

     By:_________________________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 

___________________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

 

First Reading:  

 

Second Reading:  

 

Public Hearing:  

 

Third Reading

87

Item 1.



 

88

Item 1.



Purchase Order # Dept Name Vendor Ordered Item PO Date Amount GL Account Comment

20211023 Stormwater Capital Improvement Project FundCBG INC EVERGREEN REGIONAL BMP POND CONSTRUCTION 2/28/2021 592,542.50 50260024-51170

20210415 Stormwater Capital Improvement Project FundWARD EDWARDS, INC.  BREWER MEMORIAL PROJECT 7/31/2020 36,769.52 50260017-51160

Stormwater Capital Improvement Project FundTRULUCK CONSTRUCTION INC BREWER MEMORIAL CONSTRUCTION 371,212.71 50260017-51160

Construction portion ($371,212.71) of the 

funds should be rolled over from 50260017-

51160 to 50260017-51170. Construction 

contract has been fully vetted and awarded 

to Truluck Construction Inc. 

20210414 Stormwater Capital Improvement Project FundANDREWS ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. 7/31/2020 3,863.22 50260024-51160

20210421 Stormwater Capital Improvement Project FundANDREWS ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. SALT CREEK PROJECT 7/31/2020 67,875.94 50260020-51160

20211180 TRAFFICE OPS MANAGEMENT VULCAN INC SIGNS 5/13/2021 5,867.35 10001241-52340

20210795 PUBLIC WORKS GRAYBAR FENCE PW GATE INSTALL 12/16/2020 18,993.00 10001302-51170

20210947 PUBLIC WORKS SHARPER EDGE CUSTOM CONCRETE CONCRETE SIDEWALK 2/23/2021 3,960.00 10001320-51160

20211266 Public Works Vic Bailey 2022 Ford F250 w/service bed 6/9/2021 $48,470.00 10001320-54000 Should be 10001301-54000 if this gets approved by council

20211273  Administration Southern Fence, LLC Camp St. Mary's Gate 6/11/2021 $24,773.00 10001100-56100

20211284 Administration Forms & Supply Communications Furniture  6/14/2021 $11,656.87 10001100-56100

20210838 Animal Shelter & Control VIC BAILEY FORD 2020 Ford Transit Van 12/31/2020 37,430.00$     10001270-54000 220091

20211251 Animal Shelter & Control TRUCKVAULT, INC. VIC Vaults 5/31/2021 6,149.00$       10001270-51990 220142

20211257 Animal Shelter & Control MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS Radio Equipment 5/31/2021 40,353.72$     10001270-51990 220143

20211355 Emerency Medical Service NORTHWESTERN EMERGENCY VEHICLES, INC. Ambulance (1) 6/30/2021 264,072.00$  10401230-54000 220172

20211354 Emerency Medical Service NORTHWESTERN EMERGENCY VEHICLES, INC. Ambulance Remount- (2) 6/30/2021 310,878.00$  10401230-54000 220173

20211268 Emerency Medical Service MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. Radio Equipment 5/31/2021 13,484.23$     10401230-54200 220174

20211265 Emerency Medical Service STRYKER SALES CORP. Cardiac Monitor 5/31/2021 34,612.58$     10401230-54200 220177

20210149 Mosquito Control CAROLINA AIR INC. Heating System for Mos Ctrl Hanger 7/8/2020 21,214.00$     10001400-52320 220120

20211284 Facility Management Forms & Supply, Inc. Communication Furniture 6/14/2021 $11,656.87 10001100-56100

20210737 Facility Management RMF Engineering Courthouse RTU Replacement MEP 11/18/2020 $6,110.16 10001310-51130

20211327 Facility Management Beau Allen America, LLC Library Window Replacement 6/22/2021 $15,600.00 10001310-51130

20211297 Facility Management Beaufort Design Build Council Chamber Renovation 6/17/2021 $21,500.00 10001310-51160

20211179 Facility Management RMF Engineering Burton Wells HVAC Replacement A&E 5/10/2021 $23,770.07 10001310-51160

20211298 Facility Management RMF Engineering Admin Building RTU No. 2 Replacement 6/17/2021 $17,115.00 10001310-51160

20211146 Facility Management Coastal Air Technologies Detention Center Hood replacement 4/29/2021 $48,130.00 10001310-51130

20211295 Facility Management Vic Bailey Ford Van 5/31/2021 $27,409.00 10001310-54200

20211270 Facility Management Codelynx Warehouse cameras 6/9/2021 $13,465.78 10001310-51130

20211276 Facility Management Codelynx Public Works South Access 6/11/2021 $7,216.73 10001310-51130

20210712 Facility Management Codelynx Public Works South gate/pole camera 11/13/2020 $9,906.64 10001310-51130

20211338 Solid Waste and Recycling Vic Bailey Ford 2021 FORD F 150 - replaces #38278 6/23/2021 $33,256.00 10001340-54200

20211343 Solid Waste and Recycling Southern Trailer Depot LLC Dump Trailer 6/23/2021 $8,155.00 23520012-54200 6,000.00                                                               

Solid Waste and Recycling Southern Trailer Depot LLC Dump Trailer 10001340-52990 2,155.00                                                               

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Bluffton Rec Basketball $9,550 10001604-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Tennis/Pickleball Ulmer $27,047 10001600-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Lind Brown Basketball $15,000 10001600-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis MC Riley Basketball $10,400 10001604-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Scott Park Tennis $16,000 10001600-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Agnes Major Basketball $16,750 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Booker T Basketball $9,000 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Broomfield Basketball $9,000 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Burton Wells Basketball $13,894 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Wesley Felix Basketball $8,900 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Wesley Felix Tennis $9,300 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Scott Park Basketball $11,000 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Gloria Potts Basketball $10,800 10001600-54420 PO Pending

FY21 Carryover Items

89

Item 1.



Parks & Recreation Talbot Tennis Dale $9,000 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Wilson and Associates MC Riley Field renovation $29,100 10001604-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Wilson and Associates Oscar Frazier Field renovation $27,900 10001604-54420 2022 PO

Parks & Recreation Wilson and Associates Burton Wells Field renovation $27,900 10001600-54420 PO Pending

Parks & Recreation Perry Weather Lighning Detectors $75,000 10001600 & 10001604-54420 No PO Done- Split 45K & 30K

Parks & Recreation T-Star Pool Cover $14,500 10001600-54420 No PO Done

Parks & Recreation Site One Field Sprayer $15,530 10001600-54200 No PO Done

Parks & Recreation Graybar Temp Fencing $7,200 10001600-51160 No PO Done

Parks & Recreation Open Yard Soccer Goals $13,710 10001600-54200 No PO Done

Parks & Recreation Home Depot Floor Scrubber $10,122 10001604-52612 No PO Done

Parks & Recreation Carribean Landscaping Tree Removal Port Royal $2,850 10001600-54200

Was submitted as a  roll over,

 not yet approved

PO # Dept: VENDOR NAME OREDERED ITEM PO DATE AMOUNT GL ACCOUNT

County Council Various Claimants Retiree Insurance Settlement $125,000.00 10001000-56000

20211241 Clerk of Court Forms & Supply Inc. New Courthouse Furniture $87,409.02 10001030-54510

PO # VENDOR NAME OREDERED ITEM PO DATE

ORIGINAL 

AMOUNT GL ACCOUNT ACTION REQUIRED- AS OF 8/3/21

20211233 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Mock Plumbing & Mechanical Emergency replacement Prichardville tower HVAC 5/26/2021 $8,430.00 10001220-52400 ROLL $8,430.00

20210386 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Cloud CM, LLC Forensics Lab extension 8/5/2020 $428,662.00 10001203-54420 ROLL $226,400.79

20210438 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Beaufort Design Build LLC Forensics Lab extension 8/19/2020 $11,802.30 10001203-54420 ROLL $1,028.26

20210706 SHERIFF'S OFFICE F&ME CONSULTANTS Forensics Lab extension 11/13/2020 $5,000.00 10001203-54420 ROLL $497.50

20211117 SHERIFF'S OFFICE SELECTRIC Forensics Lab extension 4/20/2021 $3,000.00 10001203-54420 ROLL $3,000.00

20211310 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Business Systems of South Carolina Evidence Lockers 6/18/2021 $89,576.29 10001201-54420 89,576.29

SHERIFF'S OFFICE Federal Courthouse Renovations $1,000,000.00 10001201-54420 1,000,000.00

Sheriff's GF FY21 PO ROLLOVER $1,328,932.84

PO #

ELECTED OFFICIAL OFFICE OR 

DEPARTMENT VENDOR NAME OREDERED ITEM PO DATE

ORIGINAL 

AMOUNT GL ACCOUNT ACTION REQUIRED- AS OF 8/3/21

20210289 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Abbott Informatics Data Migration (Grant purchase) 7/27/2020 $31,120.00 27160013-51160 ROLL $31,120.00

20210684 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Indigital ESINET 9-1-1 7/31/2020 $138,094.00 22010011-54142 ROLL $124,284.60

20210474 SHERIFF'S OFFICE Vesta Solutions Rollover BAL 20200394/Replace 911 call handlg system8/25/2020 $675,501.07 22010011-54112 ROLL $675,501.07

20210917 SHERIFF'S OFFICE GEO-Comm GIS Data Conversion 2/12/2021 $45,101.00 22010011-54112 ROLL $45,101.23

Sheriff's SRF & BOND Funds FY21 PO ROLLOVER $876,006.90

Sheriff's Grand Total $2,204,939.74

TOTAL FY21 CARYYOVER TO FY22: 4,974,270.44$                                            

ELECTED OFFICIALS

90

Item 1.



Beaufort County, SC
Positions needed for Finance, Budget & Purchasing

Estimated Estimated 
Salary Benefits Total

Finance:
Senior Accountant 60,000$                   21,000$                   81,000$                   
Staff Accountant 45,000                     15,750                     60,750                     
Staff Accountant 45,000                     15,750                     60,750                     

150,000                   52,500                     202,500                   

Budget:
Revenue Analyst 45,000                     15,750                     60,750                     
Budget Analyst 45,000                     15,750                     60,750                     

90,000                     31,500                     121,500                   

Purchasing:
   Senior Staff Assistant $38,000 13,300 51,300

Clerk to Council:
   Administrative Assistant $35,000 12,250 47,250

Totals 278,000$                 97,300$                   422,550$                 

Finance FTE Procurement FTE Budget FTE
Beaufort County FTE  (during audit period) 12 2 0
Beaufort County FTE  (currently) 8 2 1
Beaufort County FTE  (proposed) 15 3 3
Charleston County FTE 12 19 7
Richland County FTE 19 7

Proposed Funding Sources:
GF Revenues 132,662,999$         
GF Expenditures 132,402,978$         
Surplus to allocate 260,021$                 

Amount to be used from Dept vacancy savings: 162,529$                 

NOTE: There is no increase in Appropriations for FY2022 as we will absorb in the General Fund.

91

Item 1.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Ordinance to redirect expenditures of the General Obligation Bonds Series 2020. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 08/16/2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO  

10 Minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

County Council issued $36,775,000 of GO Bond Series 2020 of which $11,775,000 was dedicated to 
capital improvements on August 26, 2020. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The portion of the 2020 Series GO Bond of $11,775,000 had an amount of $5,500,000 that was 
appropriated for on repairs to the administration building. Since the issuance of the bonds Public 
Works and Engineering have done a needs assessment of all other County properties and identified a 
list of necessary capital repairs (the list is attached) that Administration would like to complete with 
this funding in an amount not to exceed the original $5,500,000 originally appropriated. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None, the funding is already in place, it is a re-direction of funds.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee approve this re-direction of bond funds. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Approve the Ordinance and move forward to Council for First Reading and Approval on date?) 

 

92

Item 2.



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE RE-DIRECTION AND EXPENDITURE OF A 

PORTION OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE BEAUFORT COUNTY, GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING 

THERETO.   

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Amended and Restated Ordinance No. 2019/40 duly enacted on September 9, 

2019 (the “Ordinance”), by the County Council (the “County Council”) of Beaufort County, South Carolina 

(the “County”), the County authorized the issuance of not to exceed $11,775,000 General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2019B, or such other authorized designation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on August 26, 2020, the County issued its $36,775,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 

2020, which consisted of $25,000,000 for the rural and critical lands program authorized by a separate 

ordinance and $11,775,000 (the “8% Bonds”) for capital improvements which were issued pursuant to the 

Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ordinance, the 8% Bonds were being issued for, among other purposes, 

to fund capital improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, at the time of the issuance of the 8% Bonds, one of the capital improvements to be funded 

with the proceeds of the 8% Bonds (the “8% Bond Proceeds”) was renovations to the County Administration 

Building; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County’s Administration has informed the County Council that funding County-wide 

facility maintenance is a more urgent need at this time than renovations to the County Administration Building.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 1. The County Council hereby approves the re-direction of the expenditure of $5,500,000 of 8% 

Bond Proceeds from the purpose of funding renovations to the County Administration Building to the purpose 

of funding County-wide facility maintenance. 

 

 2. The County Council hereby authorizes the County Administrator to take all actions to 

accomplish the re-direction of the 8% Bond Proceeds. 

 

 3. The County Administrator is authorized to make any additional reallocations of funds which may 

become necessary or helpful for the completion of appropriate projects in the future. The County Administrator 

shall notify county council of any such reallocations. 

 

 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 

93

Item 2.



_____________________________________ 

Resolution No. ___________ 

Page 2 of 2 

45935227 v1 

 

 

 Enacted this _____ day of _____________, 2021. 

 

      BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Chair, County Council 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Clerk to County Council 

 

First Reading:    

Second Reading:   

Public Hearing:    

Third and Final Reading: 

94

Item 2.



Location
Facility Management
Administration Building HVAC replacement 100 Ribaut Road
Administration Building roof replacement 100 Ribaut Road
Barker Field restroom renovations 70 Baygall Road
BIV#3 generator connection 106 Industrial Village Road
Burton Wells Center-HVAC/Energy Mgmt System 1 Middleton Rec. Drive
Courthouse HVAC Chiller replacement 102 Ribaut Road
Courthouse-Replace acoustical tile/panels/hard surfaces 102 Ribaut Road
Daufuskie Island restroom renovations 105 Francis Jones Road
Detention Center acoustical tile, painting 106 Ribaut Road
Detention Center stucco repair 106 Ribaut Road All repairs and improvements NTE $5,500,000
Detention Center walk-in coolers/freezer 106 Ribaut Road
Detention Center-Replace VCT/flooring 106 Ribaut Road
Elevator upgrades / updates 11 elevators Various locations
EMS generator 86 Shanklin Road
EMS roof replacement 2727 Depot Road
Government Center South roof replacement 539 William Hilton Parkway
Human Services-painting/flooring 1925 Duke Street
Mosquito Control roof replacement 84 Shanklin Road
Myrtle Park Building generator 4819 Bluffton Parkway
Myrtle Park Building HVAC/Energy Management System 4819 Bluffton Parkway
Myrtle Park Elevator replacement 4819 Bluffton Parkway
Sheriff's Office Evidence locker HVAC 2727 Depot Road
Additional reallocations of funds which may become necessary Various locations

Title of Project

95

Item 2.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A request to authorize the County Administrator to enter into mediation to attempt to establish the purchase 
price of two parking lots at the old courthouse from the G.G. Dowling Family Partnership, LP. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Kurt Taylor, County Attorney 

Time Needed for Item Discussion- 5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

 Council previously indicated a preference for ownership of the lots, and directed staff to order an 
appraisal. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

County Council previously directed that the County Administrator pursue acquisition of the two 
parking lots connected to the old courthouse, which is being renovated for use by the Sheriff's Office. 
Staff received an appraisal establishing the value of the two lots at $1,250,000. The owners received 
an appraisal establishing the value of the two lots at $2,030,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The mediation will attempt to reach an agreed-upon price for the two lots. Staff will return to council 
for final authorization for funding and purchase of the lots.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Recommend authorizing the Administrator to enter into non-binding mediation to attempt to 
establish an agreed-upon purchase price for the two parking lots at the old courthouse. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation to council for entering into mediation 

Move forward to Council for approval 

 

96

Item 3.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Text Amendment to The Community Development Code (CDC): Section 5.5.30.B.1 (General Parking Standards, 
Off-Site/Premises Parking) to Provide Additional Flexibility  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Beaufort County Council, August 23, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Acting Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

(5 minutes need for item discussion) 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Community Development Code (CDC) allows required vehicle parking to be provided off-site under certain 
conditions as outlined in Section 5.5.30.B. Currently, off-site parking can be located no more than 600’ from 
the subject property and must be permanently linked to the site by a recorded covenant. The distance 
restriction limits, or effectively prevents, remote shuttle parking. The requirement for a restrictive covenant 
presents time, cost, and legal concerns that discourage property owner participation.  The Beaufort County 
Planning Commission reviewed this proposed amendment at their July 8, 2021 meeting. They unanimously 
recommended approval. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Staff believes the code should allow more flexibility in approving off-set parking arrangements. Allowing staff 
to approve off-site parking more than 600’ from the premises may make good sense in some situations. (Note 
that the previous Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance did give staff that flexibility.) A simple shared 
parking agreement should generally suffice to ensure adequate parking. Shared parking should be encouraged 
to allow landowners to make the most effective use of their property and to minimize the amount of land 
(particularly impervious surface) devoted to parking.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Approve the amendment or Deny the amendment. to the Community Development Code (CDC): Section 
5.5.30.B.1 (General Parking Standards, Off-Site/Premises Parking) to provide additional flexibility 

 

 

 

97

Item 4.



 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2021 / __ 

  

 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): 

SECTION 5.5.30.B.1 (GENERAL PARKING STANDARDS, OFF-SITE/PREMISES 

PARKING) TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FLEXIBILITY 

 

 WHEREAS, added text is highlighted in yellow and underlined.  

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of __________ 2021. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 
 

  

98

Item 4.



 
 
 
 
5.5.30 General Parking Standards         
 

A.  Storage and/or Parking of Heavy Trucks and Trailers. Parking or storage of heavy trucks (vehicles 
over 20,000 GVW) and trailers in any zone for residential or storage purposes shall be prohibited 
except as follows:  

1.  Semi-trailer trucks, their cabs or trailers, and other heavy trucks may be parked or stored on any 
residential lot within the T2 Rural district;  

2.  In all other districts, one commercial truck or one semi-trailer cab may be parked on any 
residential lot of one acre or larger provided it is not prohibited by private covenants and 
restrictions;  

3.  Where storage and/or parking of heavy trucks and trailers is permitted, the following shall apply:  

a.  The vehicle shall be stored in the rear or interior side setback behind the front of the building, 
garage, or carport;  

b.  There is a principal use of the property, to which such storage would be an accessory use;  

c.  No living quarters shall be maintained or any business conducted from within while such 
trailer or vehicle is so parked or stored; and  

d.  The required number of parking spaces on the parcel is maintained in addition to the area 
used for the stored vehicle(s).  

 
B.  Off-Site/Premises Parking. If a property owner is unable to provide the required parking on-site, the 

owner may at the discretion of the Director satisfy the parking requirement off-site provided the 
following standards are met.  

1.  General to All Zones.  

a.  Required parking may be provided in off-street parking facilities on another property within 
600 feet of the site proposed for development, as measured:  

(1)  Along the street right-of-way; or  

(2)  Between the closest edge of such parking facilities to the closest edge of the site being 
served.  

The Director may approve parking further than 600 feet if it is in conjunction with a plan to 
provide access to the lot (e.g., valet or shuttle service). 

b.  Pedestrian access between the use or the site and the off-premises parking area shall be via 
paved sidewalk or walkway.  

c.  The owner shall provide a written parking agreement reflecting the arrangement with the 
other site recorded parking agreement reflecting the arrangement with the other site. The 
shared parking arrangement shall require a recorded covenant running with the land, 
recorded by the owner of the parking lot, guaranteeing that the required parking will be 
maintained exclusively for the uses served and remain for the duration of the use.  

d.  If the off-premises parking facility is shared, the Director may allow a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces. The reduction shall be based on the Shared Parking 
practices procedures outlined in Section 5.5.40 (Number of Motor Vehicle Parking Spaces 
Required).  

99

Item 4.



 
 
 
 

e.  All off-street parking facilities shall be located on property zoned for the use which the 
parking is intended to serve, or specifically permitted for parking facility uses in Table 3.1.60 
(Consolidated Use Table).  

2.  Specific to Conventional Zones. Off-site parking facilities for a non-residential use shall not be 
located in a C3 zone.  

C.  Pervious parking. The use of pervious parking spaces is strongly encouraged to promote on-site 
stormwater infiltration, aquifer recharging, and improved water quality.  

 

100

Item 4.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

An ordinance authorizing the abandonment of an easement encumbering property identified as TMS NO. 
R100 016 000 0199 0000. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council Meeting August 23, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 
 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

NRC Unanimously (9:0) approved Ordinance on 8-9-2021 
 
Prior to 2017, the County had already acquired several drainage easements around Bessies Lane and Young 
Circle, however, there were gaps in easement coverage preventing adequate maintenance of this regionally 
significant drainage system. At that time, staff renewed efforts to obtain the remaining easements associated 
with this drainage system.  In 2018, due to lack of interest in easement requests from landowners, the Natural 
Resources Committee (NRC) debated whether the County should abandon the easements it had previously 
acquired and cease maintenance of the system or complete the system through condemnations. On May 21, 
2018 the NRC recommended completing the system rather than abandoning existing easements. On May 29, 
2018, Beaufort County Council authorized the Interim County Administrator to pursue condemnation to 
complete this regionally significant drainage system. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

All easements required for this regionally significant drainage system have been obtained  with the exception 
of parcel R100 016 000 0006 0000 which is heirs’ property and has been involved in condemnation actions. To 
settle this condemnation action the heirs have requested the County re-route the ditch and abandon an 
existing easement at parcel R100 016 000 0199 0000. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends abandoning the easement associated with parcel R100 016 000 0199 0000 once 
condemnation actions are finalized for parcel R100 016 000 0006 0000. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny abandonment of drainage easement on parcel R100 016 000 0199 0000 once 
condemnation actions are finalized for parcel R100 016 000 0006 0000. 

(Next Step) Three readings by County Council  

 

101

Item 5.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R100%20016%20000%200006%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R100%20016%20000%200006%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R100%20016%20000%200006%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021 / __ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT OF AN EASEMENT 

ENCUMBERING PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS TMS NO. R100 016 000 0199 0000 

 WHEREAS, on or about September 17, 2009, Betsy Heyward agreed to deed Beaufort 

County a thirty-foot (30’) drainage easement located across the middle of real property identified 

as TMS No. R100 016 000 0199 0000 in connection with a drainage system; and  

 WHEREAS, a thirty-foot (30’) drainage easement was recorded with the Beaufort County 

Register of Deeds on September 18, 2009 at Book 2890 / Pages 0973-0975; and 

 WHEREAS, the easement referred to above is part of a bigger drainage system that 

services drainage in the local neighborhood and runs very close to a dwelling structure located on 

aforementioned parcel; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Natural Resources Committee recommended on May 21, 

2018 to complete the regionally significant drainage system rather than abandon previously 

acquired easements and cease maintenance responsibility of the drainage system; and 

WHEREAS, on May 29, 2018, Beaufort County Council authorized the Interim County 

Administrator to pursue condemnation on remaining tracts needed to complete the drainage 

systema; and 

WHEREAS, all easements required for this regionally significant drainage system have 

been obtained  with the exception of parcel R100 016 000 0006 0000 which is heirs’ property and 

has been involved in condemnation actions; and 

WHEREAS,  upon a Preliminary Agreement associated with the condemnation of parcel 

R100 016 000 0006 0000, and all parties agree that once the Condemnation Notice (C/A NO: 

2019-CP-07-0201) is Amended and County Council has approved the abandonment of the 

easement across parcel R100 016 000 0199 0000 as shown on attached  Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County agrees to  re-route the drainage ditch as set forth in attached 

Exhibit “A” based upon the request of the heirs of parcel  R100 016 000 0006 0000 as part of the  

Final Agreement of Condemnation Notice (C/A NO: 2019-CP-07-0201 to be amended) ; and 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County has determined that it is in the best interest of the County 

to abandon the easement on parcel R100 016 000 0199 0000 and re-route the drainage ditch as 

shown in attached Exhibit “A” upon Final Agreement of Condemnation Notice (C/A NO: 2019-

CP-07-0201 to be amended); and 

WHEREAS, S.C. Code Ann. §4-9-130 requires that the transfer of any interest in real 

property owned by the County must be authorized by the adoption of an ordinance by Beaufort 

County Council.  

102

Item 5.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R100%20016%20000%200006%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R100%20016%20000%200006%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R100%20016%20000%200006%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


Page 2 of 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL, 

that the County Administrator is hereby authorized to take all actions as may be necessary to 

abandon the easement herein described and, with particularity, identified on Exhibit “A”. 

 

DONE this ____ day of ______________ 2021.  

      

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

Third and Final Reading: 

Public Hearing: 

Second Reading: 

First Reading: 

 

103

Item 5.



YOUNG CIR

BE
SS

IES
 LN

HE
RB

ER
T L

N
TIT

US
 D

R

Prepared By: Beaufort Co, Stormwater Management Utility
Print Date: 01/08/2021
File - C:\stormwater\drainage\R100-016-000_BessiesLane.

(Exhibit "A")
R100-016-000-0199

 Bessies Lane
Activity:Drainage 

Easement 
Abandonment

Township:
Port Royal Island

0199
Easement ( DB 2890 - 0973 )

designated for
future Abandonment

®
0 100 20050

Feet
1 inch = 88 feet

Legend
River
Creek/Stream
River/Creek/Marsh BANK
Channel Pipe
Roadside
Roadside Pipe
Road Pipe
Crossline Pipe
Driveway Pipe
Lateral
Lateral Pipe
Access Pipe
Bleeder Pipe
Channel (fka Outfall)
Water Line
Easements
Parcels
Requested Esmt

006A

0006
Future Ditch Re-route 
per request of Heirs of R100 016 000 
0006 as part of preliminary agreement of 
Condemnation Notice (C/A NO: 2019-
CP-07-0201) to be Amended for Final 
Agreement.

104

Item 5.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 3.09 acres of property identified as R100 024 000 0423 0000 
located at 24 Zehm Lane, from S1 Industrial to C3 Neighborhood Mixed-Use District 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council Meeting, August 23, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, Acting Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

(5 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their July 8, 2021 meeting where 
they unanimously supported the rezoning. The Metropolitan Planning Commission also unanimously 
supported the rezoning at their July 19, 2021 meeting. The Natural Resources unanimously approved the 
proposed map amendment at their August 9, 2021 meeting. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant seeks to change the zoning of property they own just east of the intersection of Laurel Bay Road 
and Bay Pines Road. The lot is currently zoned S1 Industrial. The applicant seeks C3 Neighborhood Mixed Use 
zoning to facilitate residential development of the lot. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the zoning amendment for 24 Zehm Lane from S1 Industrial to C3 Neighborhood Mixed-
Use District. 

 

 

105

Item 6.



 

ZMA 2021-03 – 24 Zehm Lane Zoning Amendment – S1 to C3 NMU  Page 1 of 4 
 

 

TO:   Beaufort County Council 

FROM:  Robert Merchant, AICP, Acting Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

Department 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 3.09 acres of property identified 

as R100 024 000 0423 0000 located at 24 Zehm Lane, from S1 Industrial to C3 

Neighborhood Mixed Use District; Applicant: John Walker. 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

A.  BACKGROUND: 

 Case No.   ZMA-2021-03 

Owner/Applicant:   John Walker, Property Owner 

Property Location:  The property is located at 24 Zehm Lane, just east of the 

intersection of Laurel Bay Road and Bay Pines Road. Zehm 

Lane is a frontage road paralleling Laurel Bay Road. 

District/Map/Parcel:   R100 024 000 0423 0000 

Property Size:  3.09 acres 

Property Use:  Vacant undeveloped land 

Future Land Use 

Designation:  Neighborhood/Mixed-Used 

Current Zoning District:  S1 Industrial 

Proposed Zoning District:  C3 Neighborhood Mixed Use  

B.  SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The applicant seeks to change the zoning of property they own just east of the intersection of 

Laurel Bay Road and Bay Pines Road. The lot is currently zoned S1 Industrial. The applicant 

seeks C3 Neighborhood Mixed Use zoning to facilitate residential development of the lot. 

 

MEMORANDUM 

106

Item 6.



 

ZMA 2021-03 – 24 Zehm Lane Zoning Amendment – S1 to C3 NMU  Page 2 of 4 
 

 

C. EXISTING ZONING: 

The property is currently zoned S1 Industrial. S1 Industrial permits office, manufacturing, 

industrial, warehousing and limited retail uses; residential development is not permitted. 

D.  PROPOSED ZONING:  

According to the Community Development Code, the C3 Neighborhood Mixed Use Zone is 

designed to provide for high quality, moderate-density residential development (averaging 

under three dwelling units per acre), with denser areas of multi-family and mixed-use 

development to provide walkability and affordable housing options. The design requirements 

in the Neighborhood Mixed Use Zone are intended to provide a suburban character and 

encourage pedestrian, as well as automobile, access. Open spaces are provided in sufficient 

quantity to ensure an open quality with a predominance of green space. Non-residential uses 

are limited to parcels having access to arterial or collector streets or within a Traditional 

Community Plan. This Zone provides for the lower densities of areas designated 

Neighborhood/Mixed-Use in the Comprehensive Plan. It is intended to support the 

development of communities with a diverse range of housing types and uses. 

E.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP:  

The lot is designated as Neighborhood/Mixed-Use in the Future Land Use Map in the current 

comprehensive plan. In neighborhood mixed-use areas, residential is the primary use, with 

some supporting neighborhood retail establishments. New development is encouraged to be 

pedestrian-friendly, have a mix of housing types, a mix of land uses and interconnected 

streets. The maximum gross residential density is approximately two dwelling units per acre. 

No more than 5% to 10% of the land area should consist of commercial development. 

Commercial uses providing neighborhood retail and services are limited to collectors and 

arterials and within master planned mixed-use developments.         

F.  AIR INSTALLATIONS COMPATIBLE USE ZONE (AICUZ):  

The project is located outside of the AICUZ and therefore is not subject to the restrictions in 

the MCAS Airport Overlay Zone. The AICUZ is the area designated by MCAS where there 

are higher decibel levels and potential for accidents due to military aircraft operations. 

G.  NORTHERN BEAUFORT COUNTY REGIONAL PLAN: 

The proposed parcel is located within the growth boundary as put forth in the Northern 

Beaufort County Regional Plan. The regional plan and the intergovernmental agreement that 

implements the plan require that all increases in zoning in unincorporated Beaufort County 

located within the growth boundary explore options to annex into the appropriate 

municipality – in this case the City of Beaufort. The intergovernmental agreement states the 

following: 

107

Item 6.



 

ZMA 2021-03 – 24 Zehm Lane Zoning Amendment – S1 to C3 NMU  Page 3 of 4 
 

The county shall encourage any landowner who seeks an increase in densities/intensities 

under current zoning on lands that are not contiguous to a municipality but within the 

growth boundary, to explore ways to annex the land. If annexation is not feasible, 

following the procedures outlined in Section G (below) the County will consult with the 

Planning Staffs of the City of Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal to determine the 

following: a. Whether the proposed zoning amendment or planned unit development is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the municipality in whose future growth area 

the proposed development is located; and b. Whether the proposed zoning amendment or 

planned unit development is consistent with the Northern Beaufort County Regional Plan. 

This report has been sent to the City of Beaufort staff. Beaufort County staff will consult 

with City staff to determine whether annexation is feasible and whether this rezoning is 

consistent with the Northern Regional Plan. The property is not contiguous to property 

currently in the city limits of the City of Beaufort. 

H.  ZONE MAP AMENDMENT REVIEW STANDARDS: 

In determining whether to adopt or deny a proposed Zone Map Amendment, the County 

Council shall weigh the relevance of and consider whether and the extent to which the 

proposed amendment: 

1. Is consistent with and furthers the goals, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 

and the purposes of this Development Code; The property is designated 

Neighborhood/Mixed-Use in the Future Land Use map in the comprehensive plan. The 

proposed C3 Neighborhood Mixed Use zoning is consistent with that designation. 

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of 

Ordinances; The proposed rezoning does not conflict with the Community Development 

Code or the Code of Ordinances. 

3. Addresses a demonstrated community need; The applicant desires to convert the lot to 

residential use, consistent with the adjoining uses to the east. While there is no guarantee 

the unit(s) will be affordable, increasing the supply of housing near the Air Station 

outside of the AICUZ could be considered a local need.  

4. Is required by changed conditions; The lot immediately adjacent to the property to the 

west and the three lots to the north were rezoned from S 1 Industrial and T2 Rural to C4 

Community Mixed Use Center in October 2020. As shown on the Existing Zoning Map, 

the subject property, zoned S1 Industrial, is now surrounded by Mixed Use Zoning (C3 

and C4). 

5. Is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the 

application, and is the appropriate zone and uses for the land; The immediate area is 

a mixture of residential, institutional, and light industrial uses. The site is located 

approximately one mile east of the entrance to Laurel Bay. The three lots to the east of 

the property proposed for rezoning are developed for single-family uses. Across Laurel 

Bay Road is a 32-unit townhouse development.  Approximately ½ mile east is an 

affordable multi-family housing development called Magnolia Park, in addition to a Food 

Lion and a Dollar General. 

108

Item 6.



 

ZMA 2021-03 – 24 Zehm Lane Zoning Amendment – S1 to C3 NMU  Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

6. Would not adversely impact nearby lands; The site adjoins single-family dwellings 

east along Zehm Lane. The property to the west is vacant. The property to the north is a 

laydown and storage yard. The lots to the north and west were recently rezoned to C4 

Community Center Mixed Use, and an affordable multifamily housing is proposed for the 

site.  

7. Would result in a logical and orderly development pattern; The subject property 

adjoins land to the east that is zoned and developed for residential uses and adjoins 

property to the west and north that is zoned and proposed for residential development. 

8. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment – including, but 

not limited to, water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, 

wetlands, and the natural functioning of the environment; Any development on the 

site would be required to adhere to the natural resource protection, tree protection, 

wetland protection, and stormwater standards in the Community Development Code and 

the Southern Lowcountry Stormwater Design Manual.  

9. Would result in development that is adequately served by public facilities (e.g., 

streets, potable water, sewerage, stormwater management, solid waste collection 

and disposal, schools, parks, police, and fire and emergency medical facilities): The 

site is located within the growth area of northern Beaufort County.  It is in close 

proximity to public sewer and water, schools, fire and EMS.  It is served by a network of 

streets and multi-use paths that connect it to MCAS Beaufort and Laurel Bay.   

I. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

 Staff recommends approval of the proposed zoning map amendment. 

J. BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION:   

The Beaufort County Planning Commission considered this rezoning request at their July 8, 

2021 meeting and unanimously recommended approval.  

K. METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION 

The Metropolitan Planning Commission considered this rezoning request at their July 19, 

2021 meeting and unanimously recommended approval.  

109

Item 6.



ORDINANCE 2021 / __ 

  

 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 3.09 ACRES OF PROPERTY 

IDENTIFIED AS R100 024 000 0423 0000 LOCATED AT 24 ZEHM LANE, FROM S1 

INDUSTRIAL TO C3 NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED USE DISTRICT 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed amendment is outlined in red on the attached map.  

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of __________ 2021. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 
 

  

110

Item 6.



 

 

111

Item 6.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Amendment to Article 5 adding Division 5.13 (Fill Standards)  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council, August 23, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Acting Director, Planning and Zoning  

5 minutes needed for presentation. 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This is a text amendment to Article 5 adding a new division 5.13 titled “Fill Standards” to limit the amount of 
fill used in low-lying areas. The proposed amendment is designed to promote public health, safety, and 
general welfare by preserving Beaufort County’s natural floodplain and drainage patterns to minimize the 
impacts of development within the floodplain and on neighboring properties. It is a recommended action in 
the Lady’s Island Plan, adopted in April 2019. The ordinance was developed by a Sea Level Rise Task Force 
made up of county and municipal planners, stormwater managers, flood officials, environmental experts, and 
members of the development community. This amendment first went before the County Planning Commission 
in March 2021, where it was recommended for approval. Even though the Planning Commission unanimously 
supported the draft ordinance, staff subsequently held several meetings with the local boards of realtors and 
the Hilton Head Area Home Builders Association to discuss their concerns. The resulting revised ordinance was 
considered at the July 2021 Planning Commission meeting and was unanimously supported. The Natural 
Resources Committee considered the ordinance at the August 9, 2021 meeting, where it was recommended 
for approval. Six members of the committee approved, one opposed. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The ordinance applies to property situated in the special flood hazard areas delineated in the FEMA Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps and limits fill to 3 feet. Staff believes that this provides much greater ease of use than 
the originally proposed 10 feet above sea level approach, as flood maps are used by local governments, in 
addition to realtors, contractors, and developers on a regular basis. Additionally, single-family residential 
development on existing lots of record are exempt from the fill requirements. Staff believes that this will 
reduce the amount of unintended hardships dealing with existing undeveloped lots that are already platted. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No Fiscal Impact 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny proposed amendment to Article 5, Division 5.13 of the Community Development Code to 
add Fill Standards. 

 

112

Item 7.



Page 1 of 2 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 
 

To: Beaufort County Council 

From: Robert Merchant, AICP, Acting Director, Planning and Zoning Department 

Subject: Fill Standards 

Date:  August 23, 2021 

 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

 

Case No. ZTA 2021-01 

Applicant: Planning and Zoning Department 

Proposed Text Change: Text amendment to Article 5 adding a new division 5.13 

titled “Fill Standards” to limit the amount of fill on low-lying 

areas. 

 

A. SUMMARY: The proposed amendment is designed to promote public health, safety, and 

general welfare by preserving Beaufort County’s natural floodplain and drainage patterns to 

minimize the impacts of development within the floodplain on neighboring properties. The 

ordinance applies to property situated in the special flood hazard areas delineated in the FEMA 

Flood Insurance Rate Maps and limits fill to 3 feet. 

B. HISTORY:  The proposed amendment was originally recommended in the Lady’s Island 

Plan adopted in April 2019. The amendment is largely the result of the concerns raised over the 

Walmart built on Sea Island Parkway, where significant amounts of fill were used to bring the 

site above the base flood elevation. As evidenced by the Lady’s Island Walmart, elevating a 

large development site with fill dramatically alters the natural landscape. While the County has 

stormwater standards in place, there is a lingering concern about the impacts of runoff when a 

newly-filled development site stands 3, 4, or 5 feet over the adjoining property. Bringing in fill 

reduces the chances of meaningful tree preservation, as any existing trees would need to be 

protected in tree wells which are expensive to install and difficult to maintain. The impacts of 

mining the fill create water quality, nuisance, and social justice concerns in areas that provide the 

fill. Building using large amounts of fill is not a sustainable development practice. Fortunately, 

for commercial development in particular, there are other ways to comply with the flood 

mitigation requirements aside from fill.  

Since issues associated with fill have an impact well beyond Lady’s Island, the Planning 

Department set up a Sea Level Rise Task Force made up of county and municipal planners, 

stormwater managers, flood officials, environmental experts, and members of the development 

community. The Task Force oversaw the development of this amendment along with looking at 

larger policy issues related to coastal flooding and sea level rise. 

 

113

Item 7.



Page 2 of 2 

  

C. REVISED ORDINANCE:   Shortly before the March 2021 Planning Commission 

meeting, the Commission received a letter signed by several local realty associations outlining a 

number of concerns with the proposal. Even though the Planning Commission unanimously 

supported the draft ordinance, staff subsequently held several meetings with the local boards of 

realtors and the Hilton Head Area Home Builders Association to discuss their concerns.  

The resulting revised ordinance was considered at the July 2021 Planning Commission meeting 

and was unanimously supported. The Natural Resources Committee considered the ordinance at 

the August 9, 2021 meeting, where it was recommended for approval. Six members of the 

committee approved, one opposed. 

Based on the concerns raised at the realtor meetings, staff has made the following revisions to 

the ordinance: 

 Rather than apply to all parcels located at or below 10 feet above mean sea level as 

originally proposed, the ordinance now applies only to parcels located in the special flood 

hazard areas as defined and delineated in the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) 

for Beaufort County. Staff believes that this is more defensible and provides much greater 

ease of use, as flood maps are used by local governments, in addition to realtors, 

contractors, and developers on a regular basis. Residents and property owners are also 

familiar with flood maps, since federally regulated or insured lenders must require flood 

insurance for property in the Special Flood Hazard Zone. 

 Single-family residential development on existing lots of record are exempt from the fill 

requirements. Staff believes that this will reduce the amount of unintended hardships 

dealing with existing undeveloped lots that are already platted.  

D. RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

114

Item 7.



Beaufort County Community Development Code  5-1 

ORDINANCE 2021 / __ 

  

 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 5 ADDING A NEW DIVISION 5.13 TITLED “FILL 

STANDARDS” TO LIMIT THE AMOUNT OF FILL ON LOW-LYING AREAS. 

 

 WHEREAS, added text is highlighted in yellow and underlined.  

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of __________ 2021. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 
 

  

115

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

Beaufort County Community Development Code  5-2 

Division 5.13: Fill Standards       

 
 

Sections: 
 

5.13.10 Purpose 
5.13.20 Applicability  
5.13.30 Fill Restrictions 
5.13.40 Administration 
 
 

5.13.10 Purpose            
 

To promote public health, safety, and general welfare by preserving Beaufort County’s natural 

floodplain and drainage patterns to minimize the impacts of development within the 

floodplain on neighboring properties. 

 

5.13.20 Applicability           
 

The requirements established in this Division shall apply to all proposed development within 

the unincorporated County located in the special flood hazard areas subject to inundation by 

the 1% annual chance flood as defined and delineated in the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps 

(FIRM) for Beaufort County, except for the following exemptions: 

A. Single-family residential development on lots existing prior to the adoption of this 

Division (September xx, 2021). 

B. Fill utilized for agriculture and/or property maintenance.  For purposes of this Division, 

the term “property maintenance purposes” means landscaping, gardening or farming 

activities, erosion control, and filling in of washed-out sections of land. Property 

maintenance purposes shall only include the placement of such quantities of fill not to 

exceed the limitations specified herein and that do not inhibit the free flow of water. Said 

limited amounts of fill for property maintenance purposes need not be compensated by 

an equivalent amount of excavation area as specified in 5.13.20.C. Exemptions from fill 

requirements for erosion control purposes must be accompanied by a stabilization plan 

and narrative approved by the Public Works Director providing reasoning why fill is 

necessary to solve an erosion issue. 

C. Public roads, pump stations, stormwater management improvements, levees, and other 

public facilities that are necessary to provide for health, safety, and public welfare needs. 

Filling on public property shall be approved by the Director coordinating with the 

appropriate department head or governmental agency.  

 

5.13.30 Fill Restrictions     
 

A. The amount of allowable fill must not increase the existing natural grade of the property 

by more than three vertical feet. 

116

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

Beaufort County Community Development Code  5-3 

B. The only portion of the property that may be filled is the area underneath the elevated 

structure, together with driveway and walkway access to the structure; Fill shall taper at 

a maximum slope of 1:3 from a five foot perimeter around the outer foundation to the 

existing site elevation. The minimum amount of fill necessary for grading is permitted for 

parking, stormwater, and roads. 

C. If the lot area is 20 acres or more, in no case shall the maximum lot area of the property 

filled exceed 33.33 percent of the total area of the lot. 

D. If a new or reconstructed structure is to be elevated utilizing fill material, any required 

building elevation standard exceeding the three-foot fill limitation as referenced in 

section 5.13.20.B must be achieved through the use of elevation foundations, piers or 

similar structural elevation techniques that are in compliance with then-applicable 

county building code requirements as certified by a structural engineer. 

E. Non-conforming structures may utilize fill to expand up to 15% of the gross floor area in 

accordance with Division 8.3 of the Community Development Code. 

F. Any fill project must be designed to limit negative impacts upon adjacent and affected 

upstream and downstream property owners during flood events to the maximum extent 

practicable. 

 

G. No fill project shall fill in or obstruct any local drainage channels without an alternative 

drainage plan design, and shall limit soil erosion and water runoff onto adjacent 

properties to the maximum practicable extent, and be in compliance with the NPDES 

standards and with the Beaufort County Manual for Stormwater Best Management and 

Design Practices. 

H. All fill material that is brought in from offsite and will be placed at elevations below the 

seasonal high water table or within 1ft above the seasonal high water table will be 

required to meet the following clean fill requirements. Offsite soils brought in for use as 

fill shall be tested for Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH), Benzene, Toluene, Ethyl 

Benzene, and Xylene (BTEX) and full Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) 

including ignitability, corrosivity and reactivity. Fill shall contain a maximum of 100 

parts per million (ppm) of total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) and a maximum of 10 

ppm of the sum of Benzene, Toluene, Ethyl Benzene, and Xylene and shall pass the TCPL 

test. Determine TPH concentrations by using EPA 600/4-79/020 method 418.1. 

Determine BTEX concentrations by using EPA SW-846. 3- 3 Method 5030/8020. Perform 

TCLP in accordance with TCLP from a composite sample of material from the borrow 

site, with at least one test from each borrow site. Within 24 hours of conclusion of 

physical tests, submit 3 copies of test results, including calibration curves and results of 

calibration tests. Fill material shall not be brought on site until tests have been approved 

by the Stormwater Department. 

I. Modulation from Fill Requirements:  The Director may grant flexibility from the fill 

requirements in the following cases: 

117

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

Beaufort County Community Development Code  5-4 

1. Lots 3 acres or less and all single-family residential lots with sloping terrain may 

provide greater than 3 feet of fill to provide a level foundation as long as the average 

fill does not exceed 3 feet. 

2. Where no other suitable site configuration is practicable, depressions, sinkholes, and 

borrow pits that are not part of the natural drainage of the site that are not delineated 

as tidal or non-tidal wetlands may be filled to provide for a level foundation.   

3. Single-family residential structures utilizing raised slabs with a masonry or concrete 

curtain wall may contain more than 3 feet of fill if it is limited to the footprint of the 

building. 

5.13.40 Administration   
 

Fill activities in accordance with this section may be permitted upon approval by the 

Director. All fill application permits shall be valid for a period of six months from the date of 

issuance, may be renewed only upon filing of an application for renewal with the 

Community Development Department, and then may only be renewed upon a showing of 

demonstrated progress towards completion of the fill activity. All fill application permits 

must be accompanied by a detailed plan describing the area to be filled, the estimated 

amount of fill to be used and the purpose of the fill project. A professional engineer 

registered in the state must also submit elevation and topographic data illustrating changes 

in the topography and estimating impacts upon local flood flows. Except as provided in 

sections 5.13.20.A, 5.13.20.B and 5.13.20.C, adjacent property owners shall be identified and 

notified of the fill project by the applicant with proof of notification provided to the Director. 

 
 

118

Item 7.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of award for RFQ 060821 Consulting Services to provide an evaluation and study of issues 
related to Beaufort County Public Boat Landings ($312,965.00) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Engineering  

Mark Roseneau, Director, Facility Management (Alternate) 

15 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County published a solicitation for the Consulting Services to provide a study of issues related to 
Beaufort County Public Boat Landings on May 7, 2021 to which 4 firms submitted qualifications.   A 
committee of 4 evaluated the submissions and determined that Creech and Associates, PLLC was the most 
qualified. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Publicly owned boat landings contribute greatly to the economic impact of the tourism and recreation 
industries, and the quality of life of the Beaufort County’s residents by affording boating access to the creeks, 
rivers, bays, and sounds of our coastal county. The responsibility of providing maintenance, facility upgrades, 
new facilities, and security increasingly falls on the Beaufort County, with traditional funding sources 
requested annually. Beaufort County desires to make an effort to establish reliable funding sources, create 
uniform standards, and enhance safety, accessibility, security, and environmental compatibility. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The proposal received from Creech and Associates for consulting services is $284,515.00.  With a 10% 
contingency of $28,450, the final contract amount is $312,965. The County has $150,000 from an A/H Tax 
Grant already in place for this project. A second A/H Tax Grant will be applied for in December for the 
shortfall of $162,965. Should the grant prove unsuccessful, the remainder contract value will be paid from 
Facilities Management account number 10001310-51130.                            

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends award of RFQ 060821 Consulting Services for Public Boat Landings to Creech and 
Associates. ($312,965) 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award RFQ 060821 Consulting Services for Beaufort County 
Public Boat Landings to Creech and Associates. 

(Next step:  Move forward to County Council for approval.) 

 

 
119

Item 8.



                                                                    

Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment Proposal DRAFT 1 

 
 
 
August 24, 2021 

 

David L. Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 
Purchasing Director 
Beaufort County 
106 Industrial Village Road, Bldg. #2  
Beaufort, S.C. 29901 

 
Re: Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment (RFQ 060821) 

 
David: 
 
Creech & Associates, PLLC is pleased to present you with a proposal for design services to complete a 
comprehensive study of issues related to the design, construction, operation, maintenance, and use of 
public boat landing access within Beaufort County. The following is a general understanding of the 
project goals and scope of work: 

• The assessment is needed to establish the condition of current facilities, create procedures for 
their maintenance and upgrades, and plan for new facilities. 

• The results will provide a plan with both short-term and long-term solutions for improving the 
quality of life of Beaufort County residents by offering better boating access to the various 
waterways of the coastal county.  

• The process is estimated to encompass 12 months and is scheduled to commence in October 
2021. The starting date is pending the completed contract approval by the County. Due to the 
potential for state and local authorities to modify state-wide orders related to COVID-19, the 
schedule may be extended accordingly. 

The consultant team serving the project is as follows: 

• Jon Guerry Taylor & Associates, Inc. (JGT)  Marine Engineering  
• ADC Engineering, Inc. (ADC)    Civil Engineering 
• Chmura Economics & Analytics (CHM)   Economic Impact Analysis 
• Davenport Public Finance (DAV)   Capital Planning  

 
The fee is structured around the eight (8) tasks identified in our request for qualifications. The final 
deliverable will be an 8.5 x 11 formatted electronic document that provides a comprehensive summary of 
each task and the relative findings and conclusions. A breakdown of the deliverables is as follows: 
 
 

 

120

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  2 
 

Task 1: Initial Scoping Meeting with Advisory Committee  

A. Coordination meeting with the Advisory Committee to confirm scope and schedule 

Task 2: Preliminary Information Gathering and Kickoff Meeting  

A. Prepare and coordinate a fee proposal and project schedule for approval 
B. Initiate project ShareFile site for data transfer 
C. Receive from the County various data required and requested to initiate the study: all survey 

plats, CAD files, drawings of existing facilities, and copies of previous studies 
D. Develop base files for each site with available information including surveys, aerials, historic 

data, and previous study information  
E. Kickoff meeting with the Advisory Committee   

Task 3: Individual Landing Site Assessments 

A. Conduct a physical site assessment for upland elements of each location identified in Attachment 
A that includes the following components: 

-  Vehicular and pedestrian circulation 
-  Parking capacity 
-  Stormwater drainage 
-  Lighting 
-  ADA compliance 

B. Conduct a physical structural non-invasive assessment of the boat ramps and piers 
C. Conduct a hydrographic survey and dredging evaluation at the Broad River Boat Landing only. 

Scope of work does not include any additional hydrographic surveys or below surface evaluations. 
D. Develop recommendations for subsequent repairs including preliminary cost estimates 
E. Compile each site into a standard document format with a single-page snapshot summary of 

significant findings 

Task 4: Standard Operations Manual 

A. Compile recommendations to serve as standard methods and procedures for county-wide facility 
and maintenance standards for existing and new boat landing sites 

B. Incorporate the following design criteria: 
-  Ordinance for use and security 
-  ADA compliance 
-  Lighting  
-  Parking  
-  Wayfinding/signage 
-  Accommodation of non-motorized watercraft 
- Environmental best management practices 
-  Pollution prevention best management practices 

C. Create an inspection checklist for future use in maintaining sites 
D. Present a draft to the Advisory Committee  
E. Revise per owner review comments and provide as a stand-alone document 

121

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  3 
 

 

Task 5: Regional Master Plan of Boating Access 

A. Review and evaluate boat landing site access on a county-wide scale  
B. Incorporate an analysis of the following components: 

- New landing site considerations 
- Strategies to address direct and secondary impacts 
- Environmental constraints 

C. Conduct three (3) public outreach sessions in strategic locations to facilitate input 
D. Present master plan and observations to the Advisory Committee 
E. Develop a list of priorities for implementation based on direction 
F. Provide as a stand-alone document for separate funding source identification 

Task 6: Economic Impact Analysis 

A. Conduct a household survey to understand the potential use of boat landings in Beaufort and the 
surrounding counties. 

- This survey will be a telephone survey with a target population of current and potential 
boat users from Beaufort and surrounding counties. 

- Frequency and duration of recreation trips 
- Associated use of motels and restaurant facilities 

B. Utilize the Jobs EQ economic impact model to estimate the direct, indirect, and induced impact 
in terms of spending and jobs created, as well as the business diversity impacts 

C. Identify quantitatively the economic diversity benefit of the boat landing and how expansion of 
facilities can satisfy public recreation and economic needs 

Task 7: Capital Planning 

A. Utilize the cost estimates from the site assessments, data from the economic impact analysis, 
recommendations of the regional boating access master plan, and other additional county 
financial information to create a capital funding model. 

B. Identify the desired capital plan that addresses the funding required to implement the study 
scope over a 5–10 year duration. 

Task 8: Development of Final Report 

A. Compile an 8.5 x 11 format final report to document the study 
B. Document the entire process from the kick-off meeting to the final recommendations  
C. Organize all raw data into a clear format accompanied by charts, photographs, diagrams, 

executive summaries, and other supporting information  
D. Share an electronic draft with the Advisory Committee for review and comment prior to 

finalizing the report. 
E. Modify report based on owner feedback and suggestions on final draft 
F. Quality Control review of entire document 
G. Final report presented to the Advisory Committee  
H. Ongoing support from the team at Creech & Associates after conclusion of the project 

122

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  4 
 

A breakdown of lump sum fees by each major category is as follows: 

• Task 1: Initial Scoping and Kickoff Meeting with Advisory Committee   $10,765.00 
• Task 2: Preliminary Information Gathering        $44,253.00 
• Task 3: Individual Landing Site Assessments    $132,404.00 
• Task 4: Standard Operations Manual       $15,020.00 
• Task 5: Regional Master Plan of Boating Access      $20,195.00 
• Task 6: Economic Impact Analysis        $14,388.00 
• Task 7: Capital Planning         $23,070.00 
• Task 8: Development of Final Report       $24,421.00 

• Total                                  $284,515.00 

The Advisory Committee will be established by County leadership and will include key personnel to 
provide oversight and guide the study. There will be a total of six (6) meetings with the Advisory 
Committee included in this scope, in addition to the final presentation. There will be a total of one (1) 
presentation to County Council for the final report, and three (3) public outreach sessions. A recurring 
bimonthly conference call or net meeting will be established to maintain open communications 
throughout the study. 

 
All reimbursable expenses are included in the base fee with the condition that all deliverables will be 
submitted in electronic format and no hard copies will be required. Any additions to the scope of work 
outlined in this proposal, including but not limited to site visits, presentations, deliverables, etc. will be 
considered an additional service and will be billed hourly per the 2021 rates listed in Attachment B. All 
additional services must be authorized in writing prior to commencing work.  

 
Creech & Associates appreciates the opportunity to serve Beaufort County. If you have any questions, 
please feel free to contact us.  

 
Yours truly:      
Creech and Associates, PLLC  
 
 

 
 
 
Brent J. Green, LEED AP    Accepted: David L. Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 
Principal 
 
cc: Michael Supino, AIA     Date 
      file

123

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  5 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
List of 20 boat landings to be included in the site assessment scope of work: 
 

1. Alljoy Boat Landing   265 Alljoy Road 
2. Bluffton Oyster Factory Park  75 Wharf Street 
3. Brickyard Creek Boat Landing*  275 Brickyard Point Road 
4. Broad River Boat Landing  1050 Robert Smalls Parkway 
5. Buddy and Zoo Boat Landing  40 Station Creek Drive 
6. Butcher’s Island Boat Landing  10 Butcher’s Road 
7. C.C. Haigh, Jr. Boat Landing  1640 Fording Island Rd Extension 
8. Cross Island Boat Landing  68 Helmsman Way 
9. Daufuskie Island Boat Landing  13 Haig Point Road 
10. Eddings Point Boat Landing*  511 Eddings Point Road 
11. Edgar Glenn Boat Landing  305 Okatie Highway 
12. Grays Hill Boat Landing   395 Clarendon Road 
13. H.E. Trask, Sr. Boat Landing*  325 Sawmill Creek Road 
14. Marshland Boat Landing  97 Marshland Road 
15. Paige Point Boat Landing  99 Paige Point Landing Road 
16. Parris Island Boat Landing  50 Marina Boulevard 
17. Sams Point Boat Landing  1009 Sams Point Road 
18. Steel Bridge Boat Landing  993 Charleston Highway 
19. Sugar Hill Boat Landing   40 Sugar Hill Landing Road 
20. White Hall Boat Landing  33 Sea Island Parkway 
 

List of 6 piers to be included in the site assessment scope of work: 
 

1. Camp St. Mary’s Fishing Pier  119 Camp St. Mary’s Road 
2. C.C. Haigh Landing Fixed Pier  1640 Fording Island Rd Extension 
3. Daufuskie Landing Fixed Pier  13 Haig Point Road 
4. Factory Creek Fishing Pier  33 Sea Island Parkway 
5. Old House Creek Pier   50 Sterling Point Drive 
6. Whale Branch Fishing Pier  216 Seabrook Road 

 
* Indicates boat landings currently scheduled for improvements 

 
 
 
 
 
 

124

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  6 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
2021 Hourly Rates 
 
CREECH & ASSOCIATES 

Principal       $200.00 
Senior Designer/Associate/Team Leader   $175.00 
Project Architect     $160.00 
BIM/Technical      $130.00 
Administrative         $90.00 
 
JON GUERRY TAYLOR 

Senior Civil Engineer     $175.00 
Civil Engineer      $175.00 
Civil Engineering Graduate    $125.00 
Engineering Designer     $100.00 
Senior Land Planner     $175.00 
Permitting/Environmental Specialist   $175.00 
Land Planner      $105.00 
Administrative        $50.00 

125

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Request to purchase Caterpillar Model 323 Excavator w/ Long Reach ($221,823.85) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works 2002 Volvo 290 caught fire while on a jobsite and it was determined by the County’s 
insurance company to be a total lost.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Purchase of CAT 323 Excavator with the long reach boom.  Since there is a current inventory of CAT products, 
maintenance costs will be streamlined.  The excavator is a piece of equipment that is used in numerous 
different facets, it is essential to the operations of the Public Works Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

A quote has been provided from Blanchard CAT in the amount of $221,823.85.  The funding source for this 
item was approved in the FY2022 budget meeting for Public Works account number 10001301-54000, 
additionally the insurance claim proceeds will also go towards this purchase as well. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Public Works Director and the Fleet Manager recommend approving the purchase of the CAT 323 to replace 
the Volvo 290. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny the recommendation to approve the purchase of the Cat 323 Excavator w/ 
Long Reach. 

Next Steps - A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote. 

 

126

Item 9.



127

Item 9.



128

Item 9.



129

Item 9.



130

Item 9.



131

Item 9.



132

Item 9.



133

Item 9.



134

Item 9.



135

Item 9.



136

Item 9.



137

Item 9.



138

Item 9.



139

Item 9.



140

Item 9.



141

Item 9.



142

Item 9.



143

Item 9.



144

Item 9.



145

Item 9.



146

Item 9.



147

Item 9.



148

Item 9.



149

Item 9.



150

Item 9.



151

Item 9.



152

Item 9.



153

Item 9.



154

Item 9.



155

Item 9.



156

Item 9.



157

Item 9.



158

Item 9.



159

Item 9.



160

Item 9.



161

Item 9.



162

Item 9.



163

Item 9.



164

Item 9.



165

Item 9.



166

Item 9.



167

Item 9.



168

Item 9.



169

Item 9.



170

Item 9.



171

Item 9.



172

Item 9.



173

Item 9.



174

Item 9.



175

Item 9.



176

Item 9.



177

Item 9.



178

Item 9.



179

Item 9.



180

Item 10.



181

Item 10.



182

Item 10.



183

Item 10.



184

Item 10.



185

Item 10.



186

Item 10.



187

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Request to purchase of a Tiger Truckat Mower 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Replacing Asset# 21300 – 2002 John Deere Utility Tractor 6320 that caught fire and it was determine by the 
County’s insurance company to be a total lost.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Purchase of Truckat Mower is an essential piece of equipment that will utilized by the Public Works 
Department to maintain the County’s roadside Right of Ways. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Tiger Corporation, a Sourcewell/State Contract vendor has proposed a cost of $218,622.40. The funding 
source for this purchase was approved in FY2022 budget meeting for Public Works account number 
10001301-54000. In addition, the insurance reimbursement will be applied to the purchase as well. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Public Works Director and Fleet Manager recommends approving the purchase of the Truckat Mower to 
replace the John Deer Tractor. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny the recommendation to approve the purchase of the Truckat Mower 

Next Steps - A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote. 

 

188

Item 10.



189

Item 11.



190

Item 11.



191

Item 11.



192

Item 11.



193

Item 11.



194

Item 11.



195

Item 11.



196

Item 11.



197

Item 11.



198

Item 11.



199

Item 11.



200

Item 11.



201

Item 11.



202

Item 11.



203

Item 11.



204

Item 11.


	Top
	Item 1.	CALL TO ORDER
	Item 2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION
	Item 3.	FOIA
	Item 4.	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	Item 5.	ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
	Item 6.	Presentation of Award to Maria Walls, County Treasurer
	Item 7.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	Item 8.	LIASION AND COMMITTEE REPORTS
	Item 9.	APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
	Item 10.	MATTERS ARISING OUT OF THE CAUCUS EXECUTIVE SESSION
	Item 11.	PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of a Text amendment to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Article II, Division 3 (Sheldon Fire District)
	AIS Community Services Committee August 2021
	Rev. 1 20210729_181013_840535_DIVISION_3.___SHELDON_FIRE_DISTRICT
	Text Amendments - Template

	Item 12.	PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING - Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Section 3.1.60 (Consolidated Use Table) and Section 4.1.190 (Recreation Facility: Campgrounds) to revise the Campground Standards
	AIS - Campground Amendments
	Campgrounds Amendments Ordinance

	Item 13.	PUBLIC HEARING OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF A CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS TMS# R700 040 000 0001 0000 AND R700 030 000 0004 0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS DALE
	Item 14.	First Reading of an Ordinance to Repurpose Community Foundation of the Lowcountry’s 2021 Local ATAX Grant Award
	AIS - Repurpose 2021 Local ATAX Grant Award made to Comm Fndtn of Lowcountry
	CFL Letter Requesting Repurposing of Award - September 2021
	2021 ordinance to reallocate Atax appropriation 9-15-21
	2020-2021 - Awards

	Item 15.	Abberly Point Ordinance for Drainage Easement Modification
	AIS Abberly Pointe Modification of Drainage Easement-CC 9-27-21
	Abberly Pointe Modification of Drainage Easement-plw
	Ordinance Abberly Point Modification of Drainage Easement

	Item 16.	COVID-19 Leave
	Amending Personnel Handbook 2021
	Exhibit A to Resoultion Approving COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program

	Item 17.	Resolution to accept Federal Grant: Award # 1H79TI084543-01 in the amount of $1,934.988
	AIS - Federal Grant for A&amp;D
	Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Federal Grant
	First Responder Grant

	Item 18.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	Item 19.	ADJOURNMENT
	Item 1.	THIRD Reading FY21 Carryover Items
	AIS- FY21 Carryover
	FY21 Carryover Ordinance
	FY2022 Carryover Budget Total
	FTE's Requested for Finance

	Item 2.	THIRD reading of an Ordinance to re-direct expenditures of the General Obligation Bonds Series 2020.
	AIS Redirection of Bond Proceeds
	Beaufort County Ordinance re-directing 2020 Bond Proceeds (002)
	GOB Projects 5.5M

	Item 3.	Copy of A request to authorize the County Administrator to enter into mediation to attempt to establish the purchase price of two parking lots at the old courthouse from the G.G. Dowling Family Partnership, LP.
	AIS for Finance Committee 9-20-21

	Item 4.	THIRD READING - Text Amendment to The Community Development Code (CDC): Section 5.5.30.B.1 (General Parking Standards, Off-Site/Premises Parking) to Provide Additional Flexibility
	AIS - Shared Parking Amendment
	Shared_Parking_Ordinance

	Item 5.	THIRD READING OF  Bessies Lane easement abandonment on parcel R100 016 000 0199 0000 once condemnation actions are finalized for parcel R100 016 000 0006 0000
	AIS Ordinance Heyward Easement Abandonment
	ORDINANCE Bessies Lane 2021
	Heyward 0199 Easement Abandonment Exhibit A

	Item 6.	THIRD READING - ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 3.09 ACRES OF PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS R100 024 000 0423 0000 LOCATED AT 24 ZEHM LANE, FROM S1 INDUSTRIAL TO C3 NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED USE DISTRICT
	AIS - 24 Zehm Lane
	24 Zehm Lane Memo
	24 Zehm Lane Rezoning Ordinance

	Item 7.	THIRD READING - Text amendment to Article 5 adding a new division 5.13 titled “Fill Standards” to limit the amount of fill on low-lying areas.
	AIS - Fill Ordinance
	Fill Ordinance - Council Memo
	Fill Ordinance - Ordinance

	Item 8.	Recommendation of award for RFQ 060821 Consulting services to provide an evaluation and study of issues related to Beaufort County Public Boat Landings ($312,9650)
	Boat Landing Study AIS
	2021-08-24 Beaufort County boat landings proposal

	Item 9.	Copy of Request to purchase Caterpillar Model 323 Excavator w/ Long Reach ($221,823.85)
	AIS - Cat 323  Long Reach
	AIS - CAT 323 Quote
	AIS - CAT 323 Specifications

	Item 10.	Public Works - Truckat Mower
	AIS - Truckat Specifications
	AIS - Truckat Mower Quote &amp; Sole Source
	Tiger Truckat Mower

	Item 11.	Copy of Public Works - Purchase of Ford F550
	AIS - Ford F550
	AIS - F550 Quote
	Specifications

	Bottom

